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Sagarmatha

INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

The Annual Report Presented by Ram Krishna Manandhar,

Chairman of Board of Directors in the

23rd Annual General Meeting of the Company

Respected Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors and myself | extend warm greetings and welcome you all to the 23rd Annual General
Meeting of Sagarmatha Insurance. Now, | would like to present Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2075-76 pursuant to the
Company Act, 2063 with your due permission for review of the business performance & activities and seek your suggestion
to move forward with more enthusiasm and effectiveness in the future.

1. Business overview of last year (2075/76)

| am proud to inform you that with 333 employees deployed in 74 Branches/Sub-Branches and extension counter
across the country in all 7 Province and the effective strategies of the company, we are continuously on the path of

progress. | would like to present the details of the premium collection and claim settlement below:

A. Total Premium Collection

Amount in, '000

Total Premium Increment /

S.N. | Type of Insurance F.Y. 2075/076 F.Y.2074/75 | (Decrement) %
1| Fire Insurance 53,41,11 46,76,19 14.22
2| Marine Insurance 17,54,86 14,67,90 19.55
3| Motor Insurance 1,06,54,75 82,08,12 29.81
4 | Engineering Insurance 20,29,66 23,65,82 (14.21)
5| Miscellaneous Insurance 15,79,08 13,91,71 13.46
6 | Cattle and Agricultural Insurance 4,03,45 2,69,70 49.59
7 | Aviation Insurance - - -
8 | Micro Insurance 3,62 1 -
Total 2,17,66,53 1,83,79,44 18.43

B. Total Claim Settled

Amount in, '000

Total Claim Settled

Increment /

s.N.| Type of Insurance F.Y. 2075/076 F.2074/75| (Decrement) %
1| Fire Insurance 15,07,43 50,18,92 (69.96)

2 | Marine Insurance 6,38,51 3,51,68 81.56

3| Motor Insurance 54,96,17 44,2479 24.21

4 | Engineering Insurance 12,43,80 12,91,32 (3.68)

5| Miscellaneous Insurance 4,07,12 4,10,71 (0.87)

6 | Cattle and Agricultural Insurance 2,68,30 2,72,93 (1.70)

7| Aviation Insurance - - -

8| Micro Insurance 2,89 - -
Total 95,64,22 1,17,70,35 (18.74)

4 : 23 Annual Report



Sagarmatha

INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

C. Reserve fund and insurance fund:
We would like to inform you that we have total amount of Rs.73 crore in Insurance Fund, Catastrophic Reserve Fund
and Other Reserves.

Impacts of national and international events in Company’s business:

The economic growth in the economic sector would be accelerated in the coming period along with the political
establishment of the country. Along with the development of the economic sector in the country, it has a positive impact
on the overall insurance market.

With the expectation of encouraging progress in the economic sector, the impact of Covid-19, which emerged from
Mangsir / Poush as a global pandemic, has spread to Nepal as well. As the sector continues to move and gain
momentum, we believe that with the development of the economic sector, there will be an expected growth in the
insurance business.

Opinion of Board of Directors on achievement of current fiscal year and future:

Along with the improving economic condition of the country, the market for Insurance sector was also strengthening
day by day until the whole nation was forced to lock down from Chaitra 11, 2076 due to the global pandemic of COVID-
19 . All the financial activities was almost halt for the period which affected the collection of premium as targeted by
the company but still with the use of digital channel, provision of working from home for staff and the presence of
limited staff at the office for operation of necessary work the company has managed to collect Rs. 2.19 Billion premium
for FY 2076-77 which is 0.83% higher than that of previous year.

Kindly refer to the below table for categorical premium collection details;

Sector F.Y. 2076/77 FY.2075/76 |  InfEreHidht (%P
Fire Insurance 52,83,48 53,41,11 (1.08)
Marine Insurance 13,48,21 17,54,86 (23.17)
Motor Insurance 1,11,86,37 1,06,54,75 4.99
Engineering Insurance 19,84,40 20,29,66 (2.23)
Miscellaneous Insurance 14,18,50 15,79,08 (10.17)
Cattle and Agricultural Insurance 4,79,97 4,03,45 18.97
Aviation Insurance 17 - -
Micro Insurance 2,46,66 3,62 -
Total 2,19,47,76 2,17,66,53 0.83

Industrial and Organizational relationship:

We are providing our services from 74 branches/sub-branches/extension counters and our specific marketing strategy
is to settle the maximum claims of our customers and do the marketing and advertisement through our satisfied
customer for our trustworthiness which is leading us to maintain the warm and cordial relationship with the renowned
industrialist, businessman and corporate houses of the nation.

Changes in Board of Director:

As per the directives issued by Beema Samiti regarding Corporate Good Governance, 2075 the maximum number
of members in Board of Directors should be seven including Independent Director, henceforth on the 22" AGM of
our company held on 13th of Ashadh, 2076 following directors has been appointed unanimously:

From Group A, Mr. Ram Krishna Manandhar, Mr. Lokmanya Golchha, Mr. Siddhartha Mani Rajbhandari has been
appointed.

23 Annual Report : 5
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INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

From Group B, Mr. Ajit R. Gunawardena (Ceylinco PLC) and in absence of him Mr. Padma Jyoti and Mr. Patrick Alwis
has been appointed as Alternative Directors.

Moreover, from public front Mr. Kirti Kumar Joshi and Mr. Gajendra Lal Shrestha has been appointed.

Major factors affecting the business:

Unhealthy competition of business in the market with the newly established non-life insurance companies and lack
of insurance professional in the market as well as potentiality of effect of natural disaster and the global pandemic,
Covid-19 may cause the negative impact on our business but again we are hopeful as we have now sustainable
government and financial developments are in progress which may help to boost our business.

Suggestion of board of director to remarks (if any) outlined in Audit Report:
There weren’t any noticeable remarks on the Audit Report of FY 2074/75 and the recommendations made in the
preliminary audit report have been incorporated to bring about necessary improvements.

Proposed dividend distribution :

As per the decision of 283" Board Meeting held on Jestha 22, 2077 ,it is decided not to distribute any bonus for FY
2075/76 as the amount used for the distribution of the bonus share for the FY 2074/75 from catastrophic reserve with
the permission and condition of Beema Samiti via letter (341-2075/76) dated 10™ Jestha, 2076 has been transfered
to catastrophic reserve and also amount equal to 50 % of profit derived from the financials prepared as per Generally
Accepted Accounting Standards has been transferred to Insurance Fund.

Details of forfeited shares, their quantity in numbers, face value, amount received by the company prior to
forfeiture of the share, amount received after selling forfeited shares and amount returned for the forfeited
shares:

Company hasn'’t forfeited any share till date.

Company’s and its Subsidiary Business Progress:
The company doesn’t have any subsidiary Company.

Company’s and its Subsidiary major business transaction and important changes in the business during the
year:
Our nature of business is only non-life insurance. There is no any change in business

Information provided by the principal shareholders in the past fiscal year:
No such information was provided during the review period.

Disclosure on the share transaction & ownership by Board Members and Employees of the Company during
last fiscal year:
No such share transaction and ownership has been received during the review period.

Disclosure of the information on involvement of any board member or their close relatives having personal
interest on any agreements done by the company during last fiscal year:
No such information was provided during the review period.

Details of any shares of the company procured by the company itself, the reason for doing so, numbers of

such shares procured, the face value of the procured shares and amount paid by the company for such shares:
No such activity made during the review period.

: 23" Annual Report
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INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

Internal control system and details thereof:

The company has been working to make its internal control system more efficient and effective. To manage Internal
Control System, Company follows the directive issued by the Beema Samiti and the companies itself prepare various
rules, regulation, and directives to comply with corporate governance. An audit committee has been constituted under
the coordination of Public Director which reviews the company’s status and if needed direct the management for the
necessary changes and improvement. In order to strengthen the internal control system, the independent CA has been
appointed as an internal auditor.

Details of total management expenses for the fiscal year:
Total management expense for the fiscal year is provided in the financial statement of the company.

Details of the members of the audit committee, the remuneration, allowances and facilities, actions taken, and
any recommendations made by the committee;

Pursuant to the provision on Company Act, 2063, an Audit committee has been constituted under the coordination of
Mr. Anil Joshi, representative of the general public shareholders. Details of the committee as below;

1. Director, Mr. Kirti Kumar Joshi - Coordinator
2. Director, Mr. Padma Jyoti - Member
3. Director, Ms. Nirmala Devi Manandhar - Member

The audit committee reviews the operational and financial condition of the company and both internal and external
auditors report to recommend and direct the management for the required improvements. The meeting fee at the rate
of Rs. 7,000 per meeting has been provided to the members of Audit Committee. Total amount of Rs 126, 000/- has
been paid as meeting fee for seven such meetings in the review year.

Disclosure of amount receivables from directors, managing director, CEO, company primary shareholder or
any firm, company or any other organization associated with such individual or their close relatives:
No such amount is receivable.

Details of the salary, allowances and facility provided to the directors, managing director, CEO and any other
employees:

In the review year, the amount of Rs 6,72,000/- has been paid as meeting allowances to the director and other
committee members.

In the review year the amount of Rs 32,956,531/- has been paid to CEO and for the managerial teams on the account
of salary, allowance and other benefits.

Dividend amount yet to be collected by the shareholders:
Rs. 14, 62,046.17 is yet to be claimed by the shareholders till Asadh , 2077.

Disclosure on purchase and sale of property as per clause 141:
No such transaction.

Details of transaction between associate companies as per clause 175:
No such transaction.

Any other details to be disclosed in the report of board of directors as per this clause and existing law:
None.
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25. With regard to corporate governance directives from Beema Samiti:
We are putting our utmost efforts to follow the guidelines of corporate governance act 2075, from Beema Samiti.

26. Other important issues
None.

| would like to thank to our regulatory authority ‘BEEMA SAMITYI’, our shareholders, Ministry of Finance, Nepal Rastra Bank,
Banks and Financial Institutions, Office of The Company Registrar, department of industry, Securities Board of Nepal, Nepal
Stock Exchange Ltd, CDS & Clearing Ltd, National and International Insurance and Re-Insurance Companies, all the
authorities and the management team for providing us your kind cooperation and support. On behalf of board of directors
and myself, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude to the CEO and all other staffs of the company for promoting company
with your continued efforts with honesty and hardwork.

Lastly, thank you shareholders for your valued time despites of your busy schedules to attend this annual general meeting,
your kind comments on the betterment of the company will lead us for the further successful development of the company.

Thanking you all once again.
Gajendra Lal Shrestha Ram Krishna Manandhar
Director Chairman

Date: 13" Bhadra, 2077 (Saturday)
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Message from Chairman

Our Company which started its operation from July 1996
has completed its glorious 24 years of service and has
entered in its 25th year of service from July 17, 2020 . |
would like to express my sincere gratitude to the Board of
Directors, the Company Management, Shareholders,
Promoters, Regulatory bodies and all concerned for their
continuous efforts, suggestions, guidelines for the upliftment
and progress of the company. Although the company was
planning to organize a special program on the occasion of
entering the silver year, due to the fact of Covid-19 there
is no special program despite we are planning to organize
various programs throughout our silver year following the
guidelines of the government.

We are proud to state that the company which started its
service with initial paid up capital of Rs 36 Million and 10
employees from office at Thapathali, Kathmandu had
managed to collect Rs 5.91 Million in its first year and now
with a paid up Capital of more than 1 Billion is providing
insurance services through 361 employees at 76 offices in
all seven provinces of the country collecting 2.19 Billion in
its 24t Year.

During the 24 years of service the Company has faced two
devastating incidents like earthquake in 2015 where the
company had to face financial risk of around NPR 2 Billion
and the second is the worldwide spread of COVID-19 which
resulted in overall financial downturn in the world. Major
challenge of the company now is to manage the impact of
COVID-19 and focus on the continuous growth of the
company as targeted.

In today's context where insurance has become an integral
part of people and business, the company has been
providing insurance services covering risk in all areas. All
the communities have now felt that the Insurance Company
is an important friend in a disastrous time hence it is time
to draw the attention of the government as it is necessary
to make insurance mandatory to cover the risks as insurance
is the only means to compensate the insured for the financial
loss due to loss of property, due to natural calamities and
other accidents.

The main responsibility of the insurance company is to
provide relief to the insured by paying the claim as per the
actual loss as soon as possible. The company has taken
the same priority and has taken the strategy of moving
forward by making its customers fully satisfied with the
payment of the claim in a proper manner and making the
customers as the promoters of the company.

Strong and capable insurance company is today's need. In
recent days, there has been an increase in the number of
banks and financial institutions merging or acquiring each
other. Empowering the Board of Directors to merge or
acquire with other suitable companies with the intention of
merging or acquiring each other to create a new kind of
positive energy in the organization, in view of strengthening
the presence in the insurance market, could be helpful to
provide reasonable returns to the shareholders and provide

sufficient services to the insured, we have submitted the
proposal regarding same in this general meeting. We are
confident that you will give appropriate and constructive
suggestions in this regard as well.

As per the directive of the regulatory body “Beema Samiti”
to regarding the paid up capital of non-life insurance
companies to be NPR 1 billion, | would like to notify that the
paid up capital of the company has reached NPR
1,001,222,934/- . in a prescribed time period. In the process
of raising the said paid-up capital, in previous Fiscal Year
2018/2019 , the company used the short amount from the
Catastrophic Reserves Fund for the purpose of distributing
86 percent bonus shares with the approval of the regulatory
body “Beema Samiti” on the condition to reimburse the used
amount from Catastrophic reserves fund. We would like to
inform you that the company has been unable to distribute
any kind of dividend to the shareholders this year due to
the need to reimburse NPR 7,37,94,643/- to the Catastrophic
Reserves Fund .

Along with the improving economic condition of the country,
the market for Insurance sector was also strengthening day
by day until the whole nation was forced to lock down from
March 24, 2020 due to the global pandemic of COVID-19.
The impact of COVID-19 will be seen in FY 2020/2021 as
well therefore we are committed to run the company by
formulating necessary strategies for its smooth operation
and continue to provide services to our valuable clients.

Even during the country was in lock down state, the company
had provided insurance services to its customers by issuing
insurance policies using digital channel and has decided to
continue the system of issuing insurance policies in the
coming days.

The regulatory body “Beema Samiti”, has directed to hold
the general meeting within 60 days from the approval of the
financial statements likewise the meeting has to be organized
by maintaining social distance as per the rules announced
by the government. Hence the company has arranged to
make participation in the meeting through digital channel
“Zoom App” for the shareholders who could not physically
attend the meeting. The company apologizes for the
inconvenience caused.

Finally, | would like to express my sincere gratitude for the
assistance and suggestions received from the regulatory
body the Beema Samiti, Ministry of Finance, Nepal Rastra
Bank, Banks and Financial Institutions, Office of the Company
Registrar, Nepal Securities Board, Nepal Securities Exchange
Market Ltd., CDS & Clearing Ltd; National and foreign
insurance and re-insurance companies and other concerned
agencies. Also, | would like to express my gratitude and
hope to get more support from all the esteemed customers
who are taking insurance services from this company in the
coming days.

Ram Krishna Manandhar
Chairman
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CO mmitment from Chief Executive Officer

Sagarmatha Inssurance, a joint venture with Ceylinco
Insurance PLC of Sri Lanka, is now entering its glorious
25th year of providing insurance services in Nepal. We
have been providing insurance services from 76 branches
/ sub-branches and extension offices in various places in
accessible and remote areas of the country. The company,
which was set up with the motto of " Big or Small - Security
for All" has been expanding its branches in accessible and
remote areas of all seven Provinces of the country to make
insurance services accessible to more and more people.
We would like to inform you that from now on the work on
branch expansion has been put on hold instead
strengthening of the branch is given priority.

We would like to inform that the main strategy of the
Company is to give complete satisfaction to the customers
through the claim settlement and to spread the services
provided by the company through various means to make
the identity of Sagarmatha known to the general public.
From its inception to date, the company has able to make
its special mark in the Nepalese insurance market, never
looking back in the progress of the insurance business and
has succeeded in presenting itself as a strong company in
the field of insurance market and moving forward with the
goal of increasing the company's business in the coming
days. At the beginning of year 2020 , the outbreak of Covid-
19 has affected the entire world, including Nepal, and the
Government of Nepal decided to go a nationwide Lock
Down from March 24, 2020 to prevent and control it. Due
to the cause, the company was not able to meet the target
of collecting insurance premiums in the Fiscal Year 2019/20
as it was able to renew only about 50 percent of the
insurance policies which needed to be renewed and sale
of new policies was almost infeasible . By mid-July of the
Fiscal Year 2019/2020, the company was able to increase
its business by collecting NPR 1.80 million more than last
year's premium. | would like to inform that we have
succeeded in collecting NPR 2.19 Billion insurance
premiums. Similarly it is observed that in the Fiscal Year
2020/2021 the effect of the covid-19 will be felt all over
the world, there will be a slowdown in the economic activities
of the entire region and its direct impact will be felt in the
Nepal Insurance market as well.

In the process of making the company technology friendly,
the company has launched Insurance Digitally for the service
of insurance since previous fiscal year. With use of these
means such as “Sagarmatha Insurance Mobile Apps” and
Web portal, “sagarmathainsurance.com.np” the employee
of the Company were able to perform daily task of the office
and sell the insurance policy from home during Lock down.
"Insurance Digitally" service shall further be enhanced in
days to come. A s a result, Customers, through the means
of our app or Web portal, may get our service easily at
home.

In today's world where insurance services are a basic
necessity, it is time to make insurance mandatory for the
protection of government property and people's wealth in

a developing country like ours. We would like to draw the
attention of the government to the fact that insurance has
an important role to play for social security as well and it is
time to promote Insurance by making it mandatory with
special concessions.

In order to be united with the people in this difficult situation
and to establish the importance of Insurance in the Nepali
Insurance market, through Micro Insurance Pool managed
by Nepal Insurers Association, Covid-19 insurance policy
has been issued with the participation of 20 non-life insurance
companies of Nepal, including Nepal Re-insurance Company,
keeping in mind the advice and suggestions of the regulatory
body the BEEMA SAMITI. From the policy, all the insurance
companies collectively managed to collect NPR 319.88
Million premiums from mid April 2020 to mid-July 2020 where
our contribution is NPR 24.18 Million. Due to the of Covid-
19 pandemic, even though the country went into lock-down,
the insurance service is taken as most essential service,
the daily office work of the company has been conducted
with the one third number of the employees as per the
directives of the government of Nepal. | would like to thank
all the employees who were presented as per need and
doing daily work of the company without caring about their
own life in such difficult situation and providing insurance
service to our esteemed costumers.

An initiative from us in Motor insurance to settle claim at the
accidental spot "SAGARMATHA VIP ON THE SPOT"
program has been presently extended to the major Cities
of the country like, Pokhara, Narayanghadh, Biratnagar,
Butwal, Nepalgunj, Bhairahawa. It gives me immense
pleasure to inform you that we are extending and
commencing this program in all the City areas gradually.
Altogether NPR 950 Million for 6045 claim including 1117
cases in FY 2019/20 has been settled under the "
SAGARMATH VIP ON THE SPOT" program so far after its
launch in Nepal . Along with this, considering the necessity
of the society we further plan to introduce new policies in
insurance market.

By satisfying the customers in the claims, the company has
taken the strategy of making the customers as the endorser
of the company. The company has been settling the claims
in a prompt manner on basis of actual loss and has settled
5846 no. of the cases amounting NPR 1.02 Billion in FY
2019/20.

Finally, | would like to express my sincere gratitude for the
assistance and suggestions received from the regulatory
body the BEEMA SAMITI, Ministry of Finance, Nepal Rastra
Bank, Banks and Financial Institutions, Office of the Company
Registrar, Nepal Securities Board, Nepal Securities Exchange
Market Ltd., CDS & Clearing Ltd; National and foreign
insurance and re-insurance companies and other concerned
agencies.

Chunky Chhetry
Chief Executive Officer
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Shareholders’ of
Sagarmatha Insurance Company Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s Sagarmatha Insurance Company Limited,
which comprise Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2076 (16™ July 2019), Statement of Profit
or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
explanatory information, together with schedules to financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements read together with significant accounting policies
and notes to the accounts forming part of the accounts present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as on Ashad 31, 2076 (16™ July 2019), its financial performance, changes in
equity and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ICAN's
Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants. We believe that the audit evidences we have obtained are sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that in our professional judgment were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statement of the current period. Based on the circumstances and facts of the audit
and the Company, we report that there are no key audit matters to be communicated.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information such as "Report of Board of Director's/Chairman's
Statement” to be presented in the Annual Report and Accounts for FY 2075/76 (2018-19) of the
Sagarmatha Insurance Company Limited, Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the
other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated
above, any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether, based on audit work done by us on financial statement, the information
therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our audit knowledge.

However, we have not obtained other information to be part of Annual Report, hence we are unable to
report on other information. SRR

P ; //’v G“AM%\\\;&
4]
\Yr'

i

i
=
%

o ioF
S

e

s

)

23 Annual Report :

15



Sagarmatha

INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS), and for such internal control as
management determines necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decision of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our audit report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant defcnencaes in
internal control that we identify during our audit. =
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B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

il. In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provision of
Companies Act, 2063 and conform to the books of accounts of the Company.

ili. The accounts and records of the Company have been maintained as required by law.

iv. To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of accounts of the Company necessary for the purposes of the audit,
we have not come across cases where the management group or any employees of the
Company have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to accounts, or committed any
misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the company; and

v. We have not come across any fraudulence in the accounts, so far as it appeared from our
examination of the books of accounts.

vi. To the best of our knowledge, Company has maintained Insurance Fund, and other required
reserves in line with directives issued by Insurance Board.

vii. We did not obtain any information indicating engagement of the company in activities other than
insurance business as approved/licensed by the Insurance Board.

viii. We did not obtain any information indicating company's activities which is prejudicial to the
interest of the insured.

ix. The company has acted as per directives of Insurance Board.

x. We did not obtain any information indicating issuance of insurance policy other than as approved
by Insurance Board.

xi. It appears that all the financial and other information/subject matters which is required to be
informed to the shareholders as per prevalent laws has been provided to the shareholders.

xii. To the best of our knowledge, the company is eligible and capable to bear its long term liabilities
from the assets of the company.

xiii. The internal control system implemented by the company is found to be effective.

Ry )

B.K. Agrawal, FCA

Managing Partner
Kathmandu For: B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Date: 2077.02.22 Chartered Accountants

UDIN: 200605CA00018SCySM
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Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 Ashad 2076

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Note Rs Rs
Assets
Property Plant and Equipment 1 203,281,062 208,079,105
Intangible assets 2 - -
Financial assets
Deferred Tax Assets 3 17,740,467 18,142,798
Financial assets at amortized cost 4 1,986,425,713 1,277,015,028
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income 5 328,654,230 220,766,615
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 6 - -
Other Financial Assets 7 96,581,549 43,083,774
Reinsurance Asset 8 969,232,433 711,405,332
Insurance receivables 9 503,272,367 480,871,936
Other Assets 10 22,844,037 22,823,057
Current tax assets 1 32,655,121 15,873,158
Cash and cash Equivalent 12 296,361,020 492,011,352
Total Assets 4,457,047,999 3,490,072,155
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 13 1,902,497,616 1,363,070,417
Deferred Tax Liabilities 3 - -
Other Financial Liabilities 14 286,534,374 242,809,821
Insurance Payables 15 443,019,001 280,931,590
Other Liabilities 16 12,657,482 8,224,287
Current tax Liabilities 1 - -
Trade and other payables 17 79,237,585 51,780,173
Total Liabilities 2,723,946,058 1,946,816,288
Equity
Share capital 18 1,001,222,900 538,291,900
Share premium 19 - -
Insurance Fund 20.1 631,435,772 488,791,425
Catastrophic reserves 201 95,190,121 80,770,056
Retained Earnings 20.2 (35,575,455) 389,136,391
Other Reserves 20.3 40,828,603 46,266,095
Total Equity 1,733,101,941 1,543,255,867
Total Liabilities and Equity 4,457,047,999 3,490,072,155

The notes to the financial statements as set out on schedules 01 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our Report of even date

B.K. Agrawal, FCA
Managing Partner
For: B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Lokmanya Golchha  R. K. Manandhar  Siddharth Mani Rajbhandari  Ajith R. Gunawardena Kirti Kumar Joshi
Director Chairman Director Director Director

Ganesh Dhakal
Head of Finance

Gajendra Lal Shrestha Nirmala Devi Manandhar
Director Independent Director

Chunky Chhetry
Chief Executive Officer

22/02/2077
Kathmandu
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Statement of Profit or Loss
Year ended 31 Ashad 2076

Sagarmatha

INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

Note FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs. Rs.

Gross earned premium 21 2,176,653,007 1,837,944,124
Premiums ceded to reinsurers 21 (1,187,428,833) (973,129,540)
Net earned premiums 989,224,174 864,814,584
Fees and commission income 22 317,087,292 266,910,063
Investment income 23 198,177,456 144,112,846
Net realised gains and losses 24 - 3,797,894
Fair value gains and losses 25 - -
Other income 26 8,996,589 4,751,676
Other revenue 524,261,337 419,572,479
Total Revenue 1,513,485,511 1,284,387,063
Gross benefits and claims paid 27 (956,421,643) (1,177,035,224)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 27 442,188,913 733,082,339
Change in insurance contract liabilities 28 (281,600,098) (45,733,962)
Net benefits and claims (795,832,828) (489,686,847)
Finance costs 29 - -
Other operating and administrative expenses 30 (393,140,082) (312,962,168)
Other expenses (393,140,082) (312,962,168)
Total benefits, claims and other expenses (1,188,972,910) (802,649,015)
Profit before tax 324,512,601 481,738,048
Income Tax Expense 31 (129,281,507) (146,622,086)
Profit For the Year 195,231,094 335,115,962
Basic earnings per share 32 19.50 62.26
Restated earnings per share 32 19.50 33.47

The notes to the financial statements as set out on schedules 01 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our Report of even date

Lokmanya Golchha R. K. Manandhar Siddharth Mani Rajbhandari  Ajith R. Gunawardena Kirti Kumar Joshi
Director Chairman Director Director Director

B.K. Agrawal, FCA
Managing Partner
For: B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Gajendra Lal Shrestha Nirmala Devi Manandhar Ganesh Dhakal
Director Independent Director Head of Finance

Chunky Chhetry
Chief Executive Officer

22/02/2077
Kathmandu
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Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of other Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 Ashad 2076

FY 2075-76 | FY 2074-75

Rs. Rs.

Profit for the year 195,231,094 | 335,115,962
Gains /(losses) on re-measuring financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income 14,826,678 | (30,018,083)

Gain/(loss) on Actuarial valuation of defined benefit liability (23,417,020) 3,334,208

Total other comprehensive income (8,590,342) | (26,683,875)

Deferred tax income /(expense) relating to components of other comprehensive income 2,577,103 8,005,163

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (6,013,239) | (18,678,712)

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 189,217,855 | 316,437,251

The notes to the financial statements as set out on schedules 01 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our Report of even date

Lokmanya Golchha R. K. Manandhar  Siddharth Mani Rajbhandari  Ajith R. Gunawardena Kirti Kumar Joshi B.K. Agrawal, FCA

Director Chairman Director Director Director Managing Partner
For: B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Gajendra Lal Shrestha Nirmala Devi Manandhar Ganesh Dhakal Chunky Chhetry

Director Independent Director Head of Finance Chief Executive Officer

22/02/2077
Kathmandu
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Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 31st Ashad 2076

Cash flow from operating activities

Cash Received

Net premium income

Fee and Commission Income

Net realised gains and losses

Fair value gains and losses

Other Income

Cash Paid

Net Claim Paid

Staff Expense

Agent commission expense

Reinsurance commission expense

Service Charge

Other Expenses

Income Tax

Adjustment

Deferred Reinsurance commission income

Deferred Reinsurance commission Expense

Deferred Agent Commission

Written back of Premium on Govt.Bond Purchase
Depreciation

Unexpired risk reserve provision

Income Receivable on investments

Deferred Tax income/expense

Change in insurance contract outstanding claims provision
(Increase)/ Decrease of Current Assets

(Increase)/ Decrease in Financial Assets

(Increase)/ Decrease in Reinsurance Asset

(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Assets

Increase/ (Decrease) of Current Liabilities

Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Liabilities

Net cash flow from operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities

(Increase) / Decrease in Fixed Assets

(Increase ) / Decrease in Investment in Govt. & Govt. Guaranteed Securities
(Increase) / Decrease in Investment in Fixed Deposit of Banks & Financial Institutions
(Increase) / Decrease in Investment in Other Deposit of Banks & Financial Institutions

FY 2075-76
Rs.

FY 2074-75
Rs.

1,356,171,532

1,172,112,811

989,224,174 864,814,584
361,263,508 298,748,657

- 3,797,894

5,683,850 4,751,676
(1,333,249,157) (959,431,594)
(514,232,730) (443,952,885)
(216,058,112) (173,983,391)
(45,649,678) (42,742,683)
(250,203) (598,832)
(9,892,242) (8,648,146)
(403,732,334) (134,460,594)
(143,433,858) (155,045,063)
(463,708,467) 508,055,207
(44,176,216) (31,838,594)
(173,163) 56,751
1,015,552 1,680,765
(68,899) (50,401)
20,415,219 19,149,605
(82,867,086) (112,407,033)
(2,979,433) 8,422,977
(354,874,441) 623,041,137
21,530,485 70,583,814
279,378,566 (410,753,683)
(257,827,101) 483,691,565
(20,980) (2,354,068)
859,996,856 (371,487,570)
859,996,856 (371,487,570)
440,741,249 419,832,669
(12,304,437) (33,468,329)
4,550,000 63,394

(691,990,000)

(1,159,468,334)

(Increase) / Decrease in Investment in Equity Share (93,060,937) (3,908,261)
(Increase) / Decrease in Investment in Preference Share / Debenture (20,000,000) 3,028,120
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Investment

(Increase) / Decrease in Loans and Advances

Interest Income Received on Investment 181,356,858 120,358,668
Dividend Received 726,015 3,692,371
Rent Income 10,051,438 10,261,299

Continue...
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Interest Income Received on Loan

Interest Income Received on CIT

Net cash flow from investing activities (B)

Cash flow on financing activites

Interest Expence

Dividend Paid

(Increase) / Decrease in Equity after adjustment of net profit for the year
Net cash flow from financing activities (C )

Change in Exchange rate in Cash and Bank Balances (D)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ( E)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs. Rs.
4,141,359 9,800,508
(616,529,704) (1,049,640,565)

(19,861,878)

(20,230,115)

(19,861,878)

(20,230,115)

(19,861,878)

(20,230,115)

(195,650,332) (650,038,010)
492,011,352 1,142,049,362
296,361,020 492,011,352

The notes to the financial statements as set out on schedules 01 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Lokmanya Golchha R. K. Manandhar  Siddharth Mani Rajbhandari  Ajith R. Gunawardena

Director Chairman Director
Gajendra Lal Shrestha Nirmala Devi Manandhar Ganesh Dhakal
Director Independent Director Head of Finance

22/02/2077
Kathmandu

Chunky Chhetry
Chief Executive Officer

As per our Report of even date

Kirti Kumar Joshi

Director

B.K. Agrawal, FCA
Managing Partner
For: B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Significant Accounting Policy
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076

26

Insurance

1.1 General

Sagarmatha Insurance Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as “SIC”) is a public limited company, established
on 10/17/2051 from company registrar office, Kathmandu. The company obtained the license (09/053) from Beema
Samiti on 3/12/2053 and finally got approval from Beema Samiti to carry on business from 3/12/2053 and company
finally started its commercial operation from 4/2/2054.

1.2 Financial Statements

The Financial Statement of the SIC for the year ended 31 Ashad 2076 comprises Statement of Financial Position,
Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement
of Cash Flows, Notes to the Financial Statements, Significant Accounting Policies of the Company and Statement of
Financial Position and reconciliations.

1.3 Principal Activities and Operations

Insurance
The principal activities of the Insurance is to issue Non - Life Insurance contract to the general public.

Ownership of Subsidiary and Associates as at 31 Ashad 2074, 32 Ashad 2075 and 31 Ashad 2076 is given
below:
There are no holding in subsidiary and associates.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statement and other Significant Accounting Policies
2.1. Basis of Preparation

2.1.1. Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statement of SIC which comprises components mentioned above have been prepared in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards comprising of Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and Nepal Accounting
Standards (hereafter referred as NFRS), laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal and in
compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act ,2006.

2.1.2. Responsibility for Financial Statements
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements of SIC as per
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2006.

2.1.3. Approval of Financial Statements by Directors
The accompanied Financial Statements have been authorized by the Board of Directors vide its resolution and
recommended for its approval by the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders.

2.1.4. Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements of Insurance have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following
material items in the Statement of Financial Position:

® Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (quoted) are measured at fair value.

® Employee defined benefit obligations are measured in accordance with provision contained in NAS 19 based
on report of the Actuary.

® |Insurance contract liabilities are determined in accordance with provision contained in NFRS 4 & actuarial
report for Liability Adequacy Test (LAT), however, insurance contract liabilities are also determined in accordance
contained in Insurance Act 1992 and Final Liability is taken as higher of two in compliance with Insurance
Board Circular dated 28" September 2018.
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2.1.5. Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements of SIL are presented in Nepalese Rupees (Rs), which is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Insurance operates. There was no change in SIC’s presentation and functional
currency during the year under review.

2.1.6. Presentation of Financial Statements
The assets and liabilities of SIC presented in the Statement of Financial Position are grouped in an order of lesser
to higher liquidity.

2.1.7. Materiality and Aggregation

In compliance with Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 01 (Presentation of Financial Statements), each material
class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature or functions
too are presented separately unless they are immaterial. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position only when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle
the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless required
or permitted by an Accounting Standard.

2.1.8. Comparative Information

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by Insurance Company with those of the previous financial
year in accordance with NAS 01 Presentation of Financial Statements, except those which had to be changed
as a result of application of the new NFRS. Further, comparative information is reclassified wherever necessary
to comply with the current NFRS presentation.

2.1.9. Going Concern

The Directors have made an assessment of Insurance’s ability to continue as a going concern and satisfied that
it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, Board is not aware of any
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon Insurance’s ability to continue as a going concern and
they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of it. Therefore, the Financial Statements continue
to be prepared on the going concern basis.

2.1.10. Standards issued but not yet effective

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the financial statements are set out below.
The Insurance and will adopt these standards when they become effective. Pending a detailed review, the financial
impact is not reasonably estimable as at the date of publication of these financial statements.

(i) NFRS 9- Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement
NFRS 9, as issued reflects the first phase of work on replacement of NAS 39 and applies to classification and
measurement of financial assets and liabilities.

Since NFRS 9 consists of mixed sets of standards from IAS 39 and IFRS 9, this standard has been brought
to the attention on issuing body and Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal. This is under review and
will be effective after this has been resolved.

(ii) NAS 40- Investment Properties
NAS 40 has been issued and made effective. However the company has not applied the standard.

Investment property is property (land or a building-or part of a building-or both) held (by the owner or by the
lessee under a finance lease) to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for:

a. Use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
b. Sale in the ordinary course of business

Property, Plant and Equipment
A. Recognition of Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognized as an asset if, and only if:
(a) Itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
(b) The cost of the item can be measured reliably.
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a) |Initial Cost
The initial Cost of PPE includes cost of purchases, other directly attributable overheads like duties, installation
overheads excluding recoverable taxes and appropriate apportionment of finance cost.

Items of property, plant and equipment may be acquired for safety or environmental reasons. The acquisition of
such property, plant and equipment, although not directly increasing the future economic benefits of any particular
existing item of property, plant and equipment, may be necessary for an entity to obtain the future economic
benefits from its other assets. Such items of property, plant and equipment qualify for recognition as assets
because they enable an entity to derive future economic benefits from related assets in excess of what could be
derived had those items not been acquired.

b) Subsequent Cost

An entity does not recognize in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the costs of the
day-today servicing of the item. Rather, these costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Costs of day-to-
day servicing are primarily the costs of labor and consumables, and may include the cost of small parts. The
purpose of these expenditures is often described as for the ‘repairs and maintenance’ of the item of property,
plant and equipment.

Parts of some items of property, plant and equipment may require replacement at regular intervals. An entity
recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of replacing part of such
an item when that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met. The carrying amount of those parts that are
replaced is derecognized in accordance with the derecognition provisions of this Standard.

Measurement of property, plant and equipment
An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset shall be measured at its cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:
(a) Its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts
and rebates.

(b) Any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.

(c) The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located, the obligation for which an entity incurs either when the item is acquired or as a consequence of
having used the item during a particular period for purposes other than to produce inventories during that
period.

B. Measurement after recognition
An entity shall choose either the cost model or the revaluation model as its accounting policy and shall apply that
policy to an entire class of property, plant and equipment.

Cost model
Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation less accumulated impairment losses.

Revaluation model
The Insurance Company has not applied the revaluation model to the any class of freehold land and buildings
or other assets. Such properties are carried at a previously recognized GAAP Amount.

Depreciation
The company applies written down value methods of depreciation calculation as per rates and methods prescribed
in Income Tax Act, which is not in accordance with NAS 16.Impact of such misstatement is not calculable.

Depreciation of these assets commences when the assets are ready for their intended use which is generally on
commissioning and not when it starts to be used. ltems of Property, Plant and Equipment are depreciated in a
manner that amortizes the cost (or other amount substituted for cost) of the assets after commissioning, less its
residual value, over their useful lives on a Written down value basis. Land is not depreciated.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of
the item shall be depreciated separately.
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A significant part of an item of property, plant and equipment may have a useful life and a depreciation method
that are the same as the useful life and the depreciation method of another significant part of that same item.
Such parts may be grouped in determining the depreciation charge.

The depreciation charge for each period shall be recognized in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying
amount of another asset.

Estimated rate of Depreciation
The estimated rate of Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of the Company are as follows:

Asset Class Rate of Depreciation
A- Building 5%
B- Furniture & Fixture 25%
B- Computer & Accessories 25%
B- Office equipment 25%
C- Motor Vehicle 20%
D- Miscellaneous Assets (Plant and Machinery) 15%

Property, plant and equipment’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each Statement of Financial
Position date and changes, if any, are treated as changes in accounting estimate.

C. Impairment of property, plant and equipment

To determine whether an item of property, plant and equipment is impaired, an entity applies NAS 36 Impairment
of Assets. That Standard explains how an entity reviews the carrying amount of its assets, how it determines the
recoverable amount of an asset, and when it recognizes, or reverses the recognition of, an impairment loss.

Compensation from third parties for items of property, plant and equipment that were impaired, lost or given up
shall be included in profit or loss when the compensation becomes receivable.

There is no any condition to the company to impair its property plant and equipment as on 315 Ashad 2076.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating units
(CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.

If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’'s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed, only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying
amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceeds the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognized in the statement of income.

D. Derecognition of property, plant and equipment

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be derecognized:
(a) On disposal; or
(b) When no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be included in profit
or loss when the item is derecognized (unless NAS 17 requires otherwise on a sale and leaseback). Gains shall
not be classified as revenue.
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2.3. Intangible assets

Basis of recognition
An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will
flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

The company does not have any intangible assets as on 315 Ashad 2076.

In case any software if purchased by company than it will be classified as intangible assets and its useful life will be
estimate by the management.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible asset is carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied
in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Amortization of Intangible assets
Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the period of services to be rendered. Amortization is
recorded in the statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life. Amortization period and the amortization
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and they are treated as changes in
accounting estimates.

Amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the expense
category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.

Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as follows;

De-recognition of Intangible assets

An intangible asset is de-recognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from it. The gain
or loss arising from de-recognition of such intangible assets is included in the statement of profit or loss when the item
is de-recognized.

Impairment of Intangible assets
An impairment review is performed whenever there is an indication of impairment. When the recoverable amount is
less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Assessment of impairment of intangible assets
Since Company doesn’t have any intangible assets in books, no impairment test has been conducted for that.

Capital Work in Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant and machinery and
system development, awaiting capitalization. Capital work-in-progress would be transferred to the relevant asset when
it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

2.4. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized
for all taxable temporary differences, except;

a) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss.
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b) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized except where
the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit or loss is recognized outside statement of profit
or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets
against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

2.5. Financial Assets

As per NFRS 9 Financial instrument are classified into following types;

a) Financial instrument measured at amortized cost

b) Financial instrument at fair value through profit and loss

¢) Financial instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income

A. Financial instrument measured at amortized cost
Financial assets at amortized cost includes those financial assets that are held by the entity for long term purpose and
intend to hold till maturity.

The asset is measured at the amount recognized at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and any loss allowance.
Interest income is calculated using the effective interest method and is recognized in "Investment income" in statement
of profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortized cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the loss is recorded
in the statement of income.

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is
determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that
group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment. The impairment assessment is performed at each reporting date.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and that decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed.
Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of income, to the extent that the carrying
value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.
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B. Financial instrument at fair value through profit and loss

Recognition of financial instrument at fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and those designated upon
initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Investments typically bought with the intention to sell in the near
future are classified as held for trading. Attributable transaction costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss
as incurred. These investments are initially recorded at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are remeasured
at fair value.

Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘fair value gains and losses’ in the statement of profit or loss. Interest is accrued
and presented in ‘investment income’ using the Effective Interest rate (EIR). Dividend income is recorded in the
‘investment income' when the right to the payment has been established. The Company will evaluate its financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (held for trading) by considering whether the intent to sell them in the near term is
still appropriate.

For investments to be designated as at Fair Value through Profit or Loss, the following criteria must be met;

The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring
the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on a different basis.

C. Financial instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income

Recognition of Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) financial investments include equity shares. Equity investments
classified as fair value through OCI are those that are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value
through profit or loss.

After the initial measurement, FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealized gains or losses
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in the available-for-sale reserve. Dividends earned whilst FVTOCI
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as ‘Investment income’ when the right of the payment has been
established. When the asset is de-recognized, cumulative gain or loss is in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income is transferred to the statement of profit or loss. If the asset is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and removed from the available-for-sale reserve.

Impairment of financial assets at fair value through OCI

If a fair value through OCI financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its costs (net of
any principal repayment and amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognized
in other comprehensive income, is transferred from equity to the statement of profit or loss. Reversals in respect of
equity instruments classified as fair value through OCI are not recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Reversals of impairment losses on debt instruments classified at fair value through OCI are reversed through the
statement of profit or loss, if the increase in the fair value of the instruments can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment losses were recognized in the statement of income.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position can be
derived from active markets, they are derived from observable market data. However, if this is not available, judgment
is required to establish fair values.

The financial assets and financial liabilities of the company are recognized at fair value. Fair value of the financial
assets are determined on the basis of fair value hierarchy.

Determination of fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the statement of financial position
for which there is no observable market price are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the
use of mathematical techniques. The inputs to these models are derived from observable market data where possible,
but if this is not available, judgment is required to establish their fair values.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by
valuation technique:
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® Level 1: Listed/quoted (adjusted) prices in active markets for identical instruments are available. The Company
measures the fair value of a financial instrument using active listed/quoted prices or dealer price quotations and
managers buying price. A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

® Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly. This category includes instruments valued using; quoted market prices in
active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are
considered less than active; or other valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly
observable from market data.

® Level 3: Techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based
on observable market data. Non-market observable input means that fair values are determined, in whole or in
part, using a valuation technique (model) based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable
current market transactions in the same instrument, nor are they based on available market data.

Derecognition of financial assets

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognized financial asset (or financial liability) from an entity’s statement
of financial position. In general, NFRS 9 criteria for derecognition of a financial asset aim to answer the question
whether an asset has been sold and should be derecognized or whether an entity obtained a kind of financing against
this asset and simply a financial liability should be recognized.

Derecognition criteria in NFRS 9 should be applied to a part of an asset if, and only if, the part being considered for
derecognition meets one of the following three conditions:

1. The part comprises only specifically identified cash flows from a financial asset or a group of similar financial
assets.

2. The part comprises only a fully proportionate (pro rata) share of the cash flows from a financial asset or a group
of similar financial assets.

3. The part comprises only a fully proportionate (pro rata) share of specifically identified cash flows from a financial.

2.6. Offsetting of the financial assets and financial liabilities
A financial asset and a financial liability shall be offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position only when an entity:

a) Currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts; and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

b) Entities are required to offset financial assets and financial liabilities in the balance sheet when the criteria for setoff
are met and to qualify for offsetting, all of the counterparties to the contract must currently have a legally enforceable
right of setoff.

2.7. Reinsurance Assets
Reinsurance assets are those assets that are created as a part of reinsurance ceded out of the gross amount.

Reinsurance Assets is created on the premium ceded to the reinsurer on the basis of the ratio of UPR to total gross
premium income. As Reinsurance part is not covered by LAT report. Further part of claim ceded to reinsurer is also
reclassed as reinsurance Assets which is as per NFRS 4. Reinsurance assets are not set off with the gross insurance
contract liabilities as it is not provided by NFRS 4.

Reinsurance Assets is created on following items:
a) Unexpired Risk Reserve on Premium ceded to reinsurer
b) Outstanding claim ceded to reinsurer

Reinsurance assets are derecognized when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or when the contract is
transferred to another party.

Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication of
impairment arises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when there is objective evidence as a result of an event
that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance asset that the Company may not receive all outstanding amounts
due under the terms of the contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the Company
will receive from the reinsurer. The impairment loss is recorded in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.8. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities
Current tax assets of the company includes the amount of advance income tax paid to the Inland Revenue department
and tax deducted at source (TDS). Similar current tax liabilities includes the tax provision made for the year.

Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to Inland Revenue Department
in respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are shown in net in statement of financial position of the company as there
exist condition to setoff both of the assets and liabilities as permitted by NFRS 9.

2.9. Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value net of
any provision.

2.10. Insurance Contract Liabilities
In accordance with NFRS 4 based on the Actuarial Report.

2.11. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Company expects some
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. Expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of income net of
any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounting using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

2.12. Revenue Recognition Policy of company

The company applies accrual basis of accounting for the recognition of revenue which includes fees and commission
income and other income of insurance company as per the requirement of the NAS 18. Premium Income is recognized
on cash basis.

2.13. Gross premiums on insurance contracts
NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts, requires contracts written by insurer to be classified as either ‘Insurance contracts’ or
‘Investment contracts’ depending in the level of insurance risk transferred.

Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk from
another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders, if a specified uncertain future event
(the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders.

As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by comparing benefits paid
with benefits payable, if the insured event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk.

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer significant financial risk and no significant insurance risk. Financial
risk is the risk of a possible future change in one or more of a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity
price, foreign exchange rate, index of price or rates, credit rating or credit index or other variables, provided in the case
of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the remainder of
its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and obligations are
extinguished or expire. Investment contracts can, however, be reclassified as insurance contracts after inception if
insurance risk becomes significant.

All the products sold by the Company are insurance contracts. Therefore, classified as insurance contracts under the
NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts. Thus, the Company does not have any investment contracts within its product portfolio
as at the reporting date.
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Revenue recognition of gross written premium
Gross premium (GP) represents the premium charged by the Company to underwrite risks. GP is accounted on cash
basis.

Non-life insurance gross premium comprises the total premiums received/receivable for the whole period of cover
provided by contracts entered into during the accounting period and are recognized on the date on which the policy
commences.

2.14. Premiums ceded to reinsurers on insurance contracts

Recognition of premium ceded to reinsurers

Non-life gross reinsurance premium comprises the total premium payable for the whole cover provided by contracts
entered into the period and is recognized on the date on which the policy incepts. Premium includes any adjustments
arising in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance contracts incepting in prior accounting periods.

2.15. Fee and Re-insurance Commission Income

As per Nepal financial reporting standards the insurance company shall recognize its income in accrual basis, hence
the fee and reinsurance commission of the company received during the year is not totally recognized as income in
the year of collection of cash. However NFRS required to defer the fee and commission income not related to the
current year. Hence the fee and commission income is deferred by using the unearned premium reserve to gross
provision ratio.

2.16. Interest income

Revenue recognition of interest income

Interest income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by using the effective
interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the financial asset or liabilities (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to
the carrying amount of the financial asset or liabilities. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company
estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit losses.
The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all transaction costs and fees and points paid or received that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or liability. Company’s all the interest income has been from banks and
Financial Institutions which approximate to effective interest rate on similar deposit instruments in the market.

2.17. Dividend Recognition policy
As per NAS dividend income or expense shall be recognized when right to receive dividend is established or dividend
is declared by the company.

2.18. Staff expenses

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-
sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

2.19. Retirement Benefits Obligations

A. Defined Contribution Plans

A Defined Contribution Plan includes post-employment benefit plan under which an Insurance pays fixed contribution
into a separate Institution (or own fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee services in the current and
prior periods, as defined in Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

Employer & Employee both, contributes 10% of the basic salary.
B. Defined Benefit Plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Accordingly, staff

gratuity and leave encashment has been considered as defined benefit plans as per Nepal Accounting Standards —
NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).
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Provision for Defined Benefit Plan are provided as per NAS 19 based on Actuarial Valuation Report.

2.20 Insurance company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. Leases that do not transfer
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the Insurance Company are classified as operating
leases.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight line basis over
the lease term.

Insurance company as a lessor

Leases in which the Insurance Company does not transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income is recognized as revenue in the statement of profit or loss
on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same bases as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized
as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

2.21 Capital commitments and contingencies

All discernible risks are accounted for in determining the amount of all known liabilities. Contingent liabilities are possible
obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events or present obligations where the transfer
of economic benefit is not probable or cannot be reliably measured. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the
statement of financial position but are disclosed unless they are remote.

The Company has contingencies amounting NPR. 8,986,724. This amount has been re-assessed by Tax Authority for
the year 2066/67, 2067/68 and 2068/69. The company, being unsatisfied with the amount assessed by the Tax Authority,
has submitted an application to IRD for Administrative review.

Additional Tax of NPR. 3,002,002 has been provisioned as tax expense for the year 2069/70, as determined by the
final review by Tax Authority.

2.22 Deferred Acquisition Cost
As per NFSR 4 deferred acquisition cost describes the practice of deferring the cost of acquiring a new customer over
the duration of the insurance contract. Insurance companies face large upfront costs incurred in issuing new business.

The insurance company has incurred agent commission and reinsurance commission expense as deferred acquisition
cost which are deferred for the net period.

2.23 Segment Reporting
The company has determine following business as separate segment;

a) Aviation

b) Crops and cattle
c) Engineering

d) Fire

e) Marine

f) Laghu

g) Miscellaneous
h) Motor

Segment Reporting includes the total profit distribution of the company to all its line of business. The premium income,
reinsurance premium expense, gross claim and claim ceded to reinsurer, outstanding claim, other direct expenses
and income, fee and commission income, investment income, other operating and administrative expenses are allocated
to each line of business as per revenue account as prepared in existing GAAP policy however any amount increase
or decrease in such item are separately kept as an unallocated amount.

2.24 Events occurring after the reporting date
Events after the reporting period are those events, favorable and unfavorable, that occur between the reporting date
and the date when the financial statements are authorized for issue.
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All material post reporting date events have been considered and where appropriate, adjustments or disclosures have
been made in the respective notes to the financial statements.

2.25 Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Nepal Accounting Standards requires the management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

Restatement/ correction of Previous Year Financial Statement:
Summary of reclassification/ regrouping and corrections necessitated due to revision of Actuary Report of Gratuity
Liability for Financial Year 2017-18 are summarized hereunder:

a) The error refers to non- recognition of fair value of plan assets in the Actuary report of Gratuity Liability in FY 2017-
18. The Liability for employee defined benefits were presented as Gross figure without considering the plan assets
maintained by the entity in Actuary report. Now the entity has restated the comparative figure and given the impact
on retained earnings resulting out of restatement of Actuarial Reserve and Charge to PL.
b) The details of correction is presented below:
Particulars 2017-18 2017-18 (Restated) Remarks
Change in Statement of Financial Position
Other Financial Assets 118,022,069 43,083,774 53,207,640-Citizen Investment Trust (Gratuity Fund) is
reclassified to Gratuity fund.
293,251 Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expense
reclassified to Other assets.
21,437,404 Deferred Agent Commission Expense
reclassified to Other assets.
Other Assets 1,092,402 22,823,057 293,251 Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expense
reclassified from Other financial assets.
21,437,404 Deferred Agent Commission Expense
reclassified from Other financial assets.
Other Financials Liabilities | 255,128,138 242,809,821 Rs. 53,207,642 was deducted from Gratuity fund.
Rs. 7,284,480-Deposit Premium reclassified to Other
Liabilities.
Rs. 48,173,804-Staff Bonus reclassified from Other
Liabilities. Increase in Bonus Payable 330,046.
Other Liabilities 48,783,565 82,24,287 Rs. 7,284,480-Deposit Premium reclassified from
Other Financial Liabilities.
Rs. 48,173,804-Staff Bonus reclassified to Other Financial
Liabilities.
Retained Earning 382,207,328 389,136,391 Increase in Retained Earnings due to Actuary Reserve
restatement for FY till
2017-18, Rs. 7,259,106.
Decrease in Retained Earnings due to change in bonus
provision- Rs. 330,046.
Other Reserve 53,525,201 46,266,095 Decrease in Actuarial Reserve due to recognition of
Fair value of plan assets - Rs. 7,259,1076
Change in Statement of Profit and Loss
Other Operating and 316,262,629 312,962,168

Administrative Expenses

Decrease in Defined Benefit Plan Expenses due to
recognition of Plan Assets by Actuary in his revised report
for FY 2017-18- Rs. 3,630,507

Increase in Staff Bonus Provision-Rs. 330,046
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Particulars

2017-18

2017-18 (Restated)

Remarks

Change in Other Compre

hensive Income

Gain/(loss) on Actuarial 6,964,715 3,334,208 Decrease in gain due to change in Defined benefit
valuation of defined obligation-Rs. 3,630,507

benefit liability

Deferred tax 6,916,010 8,005,163 Increase in Deferred tax income due to change in

Actuarial Valuation-Rs. 1,089,152

c) The cumulative impact of correction is given on opening balance of comparative year.

The details of which is presented below:-

Particulars

Opening Balance
2074-75

Opening Balance
2074-75 (Restated)

Remarks

Retained Earnings

102,058,963

106,776,715

Increase due to recognition of Actuarial Reserve
Rs. 4,717,752.

Actuarial Reserve

(14,431,152)

(19,148,903)

Decrease due to recognition of Actuarial Reserve
Rs. (4,717,752). Correction of error.

d) The error has been corrected from 16™ July 2016 however restatement has been done for previous period ended 15™
July 2018. Cumulative impact of correction of last to last year has been shown in the opening balance of retained

earnings as shown above.
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Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at 31 Ashad 2076

2. Intangible Assets
Amounts
Rs.
Cost:
At 31 Ashad 2074 -
Additions -
Disposals -
At 32 Ashad 2075 -
Additions
Disposals
At 32 Ashad 2076 -
Accumulated Amortization
At 31 Ashad 2074 -
Additions -
Disposals -
At 32 Ashad 2075 -
Additions
Disposals
At 32 Ashad 2076 -
Net book value:
Cost -
Accumulated Amortization -
At 31 Ashad 2074 -
At 32 Ashad 2075 -
At 32 Ashad 2076 -
3. Deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilities
Valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Deferred tax assets 17,740,467 18,142,798
Deferred tax liabilities = -
17,740,467 18,142,798
3.1 Deferred Tax Asset
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Temporary Temporary Tax effect
difference Tax effect difference
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Leave Encashment (as per GAAP) 27,579,485 8,273,845 18,413,097 5,523,929
loss in Share 14,384,143 4,315,243 18,587,047 5,576,114
Premium on Bond - - -
Other Losses 11,193,987 3,358,196 9,819,400 2,945,820
Property, plant and equipment (5,983,953) (1,795,186) (4,833,553) (1,450,066)
Premium amortisation - - (68,900) (20,670)
Lease Liability 978,079 293,424 - -
Leave Encashment (as per NFRS) 1,806,633 541,990 1,361,663 408,499
Gratuity (as per NFRS) 17,485,739 5,245,722 10,679,787 3,203,936
Fair value gains recognised in other
comprehensive income (8,309,220) (2,492,766) 6,517,457 1,955,237
59,134,892 17,740,467 60,475,997 18,142,798

40 : 23" Annual Report



Sagarmatha

INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at 31 Ashad 2076

3.2 Deferred Tax Liabilities

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Temporary Tax effect Temporary Tax effect
difference difference

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Leave Encashment (as per GAAP) - - - -

loss in Share - - - -

Premium on Bond - - - -

Other Losses - - - -

Property, plant and equipment - - - -

Premium amortisation - - - -

Leave Encashment (as per NFRS) - - - -

Gratuity (as per NFRS) - - - -

Fair value gains recognised in

other comprehensive income - - - -
Financial assets at amortized cost

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74

Rs Rs Rs

Government Securities - 4,614,501 4,677,895

Commercial Banks Fixed Deposits 1,460,098,114 935,510,239 14,102,912

Development Banks Fixed Deposits 370,080,352 219,769,690 -

Finance Companies Fixed Deposits 38,456,623 18,291,317 -

Foreign Bonds - - -

Debenture/Bond of Financial Institutions 117,790,624 98,829,281 101,857,401

1,986,425,713 | 1,277,015,028 120,638,208

The management has kept fixed deposit lien with Insurance Board amount Rs. 99,35,40,000 as on 32nd Ashad 2075.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74

Rs Rs Rs

Quoted Equities 124,428,885 72,111,343 86,323,519
Unquoted Equities 167,766,800 118,661,700 112,911,765
Mutual Funds 36,458,545 29,993,572 17,623,070
Citizen Investment Trust Units - - -
Provision for loss on investment - - -
Other Investment - -
Less: Impairment - - -
328,654,230 220,766,615 216,858,354
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Notes to the Financial Statements
As at 31 Ashad 2076

5.1 Quoted Equity Shares

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
Rs Rs Rs Rs
NIC ASIA BANK 7518 no. of share 251,700 3,368,064 251,700 2,534,720
NEPAL BANK LTD 3467 no. of share 465,598 1,164,912 465,598 | 1,261,988
SIDDHARTHA BANK 1742 no. of share 84,100 553,956 70,700 648,930
NMB BANK 49009 no. of share 11,968,338 18,721,437 1,968,349 | 4,132,735
CIVIL BANK 5189 no. of share 372,835 819,862 224,535 224,598
GLOBAL IME BANK 52846 no. of share 21,131,170 15,589,570 18,269,288 | 15,283,708
LUMBINI BIKASH BANK LTD 1124 no. of share 29,600 221,428 19,300 202,199
LALITPUR FINANCE (P) 7593 no. of share 680,300 759,300 680,300 | 1,374,333
MEGA BANK NEPAL 3047 no. of share 228,300 649,011 120,500 758,906
CENTURY COMMERCIAL BANK 44699 no. of share 6,386,926 7,911,723 5,170,426 | 7,514,190
CITIZEN BANK INTERNATIONAL 21782 no. of share 3,588,345 4,879,168 3,588,345 6,715,592
JYOTI BIKASH BANK 124126 no. of share 20,590,861 20,232,537 5,593,480 | 10,497,798
KUMARI BANK 43829 no. of share 11,390,327 9,642,379 614,709 830,907
SANIMA MAI HYDRO POWER LTD 1632 no. of share 148,400 399,840 74,200 866,656
RIDI HYDRO 151 no. of share 12,700 18,422 12,700 29,295
NEPAL INVESTMENT BANK LTD (P) 15810 no. of share 2,951,169 7,399,080 2,951,169 7,810,838
GARIMA BIKASH BANK LTD 19641 no. of share 3,596,966 4,399,584 2,943,090 3,745,584
SAPTAKOSHI DEVELOPMENT BANK LTD 4014 no. of share 677,062 489,708 466,762 320,166
NEPAL LIFE INSURANCE CO. 500 no. of share 401,850 450,500 401,850 756,096
PROGRESSIVE FINANCE LTD 20000 no. of share 2,000,000 2,220,000 11,333,247 | 9,593,532
NATIONAL HYDRO POWER 57660 no. of share 8,785,639 3,690,240 8,785,639 7,611,120
PURNIMA BIKASH BANK 9573 no. of share 2,880,215 1,799,724 2,719,515 2,004,600
KAILASH BIKASH BANK 4411 no. of share 1,422,845 1,049,818 1,422,845| 1,311,270
STANDARD CHARTERED BANK 256 no. of share 165,120 174,592 165,120 293,760
RELIANCE FINANCE LTD (P) 65000 no. of share 6,500,000 7,735,000 - -
JANATA BANK LTD 47145 no. of share 9,728,926 10,089,030 - -
116,439,290 | 124,428,885| 77,483,452 72,111,343
5.2 Unquoted Equity Shares
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
Rs Rs Rs Rs
NEPAL REINSURANCE CO LTD( AT COST) 161,816,800 | 161,816,800 | 112,911,700 112,911,700

Insurance Inst. Of Nepal 200,000 200,000
KIRTI CAPITAL & INVESTMENT 5,750,000 5,750,000 5,750,000 | 5,750,000
167,766,800 | 167,766,800 118,661,700 [118,661,700
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FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
Rs Rs Rs Rs
SIDDHARTHA EQUITY ORIENTED SCHEME 589774 Units 5,897,740 6,381,355 5,897,740 | 6,222,116
NABIL EQUITY FUND 31548 Units 315,480 294,342 315,480 311,063
NMB HYBRID FUND L-1 56323 Units 563,230 564,920 563,230 545,770
NIBL PRAGATI FUND 171247 Units 1,712,470 1,274,078 1,712,470 1,541,223
SIDDHARTHA EQUITY FUND 255000 Units 2,550,000 2,572,950 2,550,000 2,437,800
SANIMA EQUITY FUND 1010000 Units 10,100,000 10,190,900 10,100,000 9,655,600
CITIZEN MUTUAL FUND 1000000 Units 10,000,000 10,180,000 | 10,000,000| 9,280,000
SIDDHARTHA INVESTMENT GROWTH SCHEME-1 - - - -
NABIL BALANCED FUND -1 5,000,000 5,000,000 - -
36,138,920 | 36,458,545| 31,138,920 | 29,993,572

6. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75 FY 2073-74
Rs Rs Rs
Quoted Equities - R _

6.1 Quoted Equities
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
Rs Rs Rs Rs

7. Other Financial Assets

Other financial assets includes financial assets other than the above normal classification of financial assets measured
at amortized cost, fair value through profit or loss and fair value through other comprehensive income. This is stated

at net of any impairment recognized.

Security Deposit
Staff Advances
Claim Advance
Other Advance
Others Receivables

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
5,848,250 6,343,694
5,245,128 2,014,999
79,984,357 28,692,657
4,180,710 5,421,806
1,323,104 610,618
96,581,549 43,083,774
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8.

8.1

9.1

9.2

44

Reinsurance Asset

Reinsurance Asset is recognised from the portion of reinsurance amount paid to Reinusurer. Premium being

collected in cash basis and not accrued is parked in Reinsurance Asset.

Reinsurance Asset

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
969,232,433 | 711,405,332
969,232,433 | 711,405,332

Reinsurance Assets calculation

Total Reinsurance Assets is the sum of the Reinsurance Assets Created on reinsurance ceded on outstanding claim

and Reinsurance Assets Created on reinsurance ceded on deferred premium.

Reinsurance Assets Created on reinsurance ceded on outstanding claim
Reinsurance Assets Created on reinsurance ceded on deferred premium
Total Reinsurance Assets

Reinsurance Ceded - Deferred Premium
Opening Balance

Gross Reinsurance Ceded

Reinsurance Ceded Recognised During the year
Closing Balance

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

438,621,022 | 220,328,887
530,611,411 | 491,076,445
969,232,433 | 711,405,332
491,076,445| 420,257,997
1,187,428,833 | 973,129,540
(1,147,893,867) | (902,311,092)
530,611,411 491,076,445

Insurance receivables

Insurance receivables includes amount receivable related to insurance businesses such as due from other insurance

companies, due from reinsurers and any due premium receivable.

Reinsurance receivables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable.

Outstanding from Other Insurance Companies
Sundry Debtors
Outstanding from Reinsurers

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
117,046,280 | 106,260,842
17,299,522 21,462,088
368,926,565 | 353,149,006
503,272,367 | 480,871,936

Assessment of impairment of insurance receivables

The Board of Directors has assessed potential impairment loss of insurance receivables as at 31 Ashad 2076. Based
on the assessment, it was concluded that there is no requirement for an additional impairment loss provision other

than amounts provided.

Fair value of insurance receivables

The carrying amount disclosed above approximates the fair value at the reporting date.
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Other Assets
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Stock of tickets 139,350 111,726
Prepayments 131,644 980,676
Deferred Reinsurance Commssion Expense 120,088 293,251
Deferred Agent Commssion Expense 22,452,955 21,437,404
22,844,037 22,823,057

Current Tax Assets/ Liabilities

Current income tax liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Income Tax Liabilities
Advance Tax Payment

Net Current tax assets/(liabilities)

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
611,834,000 | 492,000,284
644,489,121 507,873,442
32,655,121 15,873,158

Cash and cash Equivalent

Cash and cash Equivalent in the statement of financial position comprise cash at bank and on hand, call deposits and
fixed deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

net of any provisions.

Cash Balance

Bank Balance

Commercial Banks Fixed Deposits
Development Banks Fixed Deposits
Finance Companies Fixed Deposits
Commercial Banks Call Deposits
Development Banks Call Deposits
Finance Companies Call Deposits
Less: Impairment Provisions

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
90,211,325 176,155,881
-| 158,800,000

- 14,800,000

- 1,000,000
164,699,180 102,798,642
37,228,190 28,555,294
4,222,325 9,901,535
296,361,020 | 492,011,352
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13 Gross Insurance contract liabilities

Outstanding claims provision

Incurred But not Reported Claims

Unexpired risk reserve provision

Total gross Insurance contract liability

Change in gross insurance contract liability (A)

Reinsurance asset on outstanding claims provision
Reinsurance asset on unexpired risk reserve provision
Total reinsurance assets created

Change in reinsurance assets (B)

Net Change in Insurance contract liabilities (A+B)

13.1
13.2

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
756,630,962 | 401,756,521
101,502,573 39,351,867
1,044,364,081 921,962,029

1,902,497,616

1,363,070,417

539,427,199 | (437,957,603)
438,621,022| 220,328,887
530,611,411 491,076,445
969,232,433 711,405,332
257,827,101 | (483,691,565)
(281,600,098) | (45,733,962)

13.1 Incurred But not Reported (IBNR)

Company has recognized IBNR higher of actuary assessed IBNR reserve and IBNR equivalent to 15% of net

outstanding claim as per regulatory provision on total of all portfolio basis.

IBNR as per LAT report (A)
15% created on Net Outstanding Claim (B)
Higher of A and B

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
101,502,573 39,351,867
47,701,491 27,214,146
101,502,573 39,351,867

13.2 Unexpired risk reserve provision (UPR/URR)

Unexpired risk reserve (URR) is the liabilities related with the gross premium income that is not related with the
current year and is deferred for next period. URR will be the higher among the URR as per regulatory requirement

and URR as per Liability adequacy test (LAT) report.

Unexpired Risk Reserve (URR) as per GAAP [A]
Unexpired Risk Reserve (URR) as per LAT [B]
Total URR for the Year (Higher of A and B)

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
513,752,670 | 445,395,164
1,044,364,081 921,962,029
1,044,364,081 921,962,029
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Other financial liabilities include financial liabilities other than the normal classification of financial liabilities measured

at amortized cost.

Audit fee payable

Sundry Creditor

Deposit Received

Other Payable( Unknown share subscription)
Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income
Gratuity/Pension Fund

Payable to Associates Company

Employees Leave Fund

Provision for staff bonus

PF & CIT Payable

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs

340,000 340,000
29,740,874 33,559,412
177,623,742 133,447,526
16,662,334 7,514,319
29,386,118 19,774,760
32,781,306 48,173,804
286,534,374 | 242,809,821

15 Insurance payables

Insurance payables includes amount payable related to insurance businesses such as due to agents, due to other

insurance companies, due to reinsurers.

Insurance payables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the consideration

paid or payable.

Insurance payables are derecognised when the contractual obligations are extinguished or expire or when the contract

is transferred to another party.

Outstanding payable to Agents
Due to Other insurance Company
Payable to Reinsurers

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
173,637,681 174,871,584
269,381,320 | 106,060,006
443,019,001 | 280,931,590

16 Other Liabilities

Other liabilities includes the amount of provisions made for staff bonus and any other provisions determined in

accordance with the requirements of NAS 37.

Penal Vat and Tax
Deposit Premium
Other provision

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
4,591,991 -
7,309,746 7,284,480
755,745 939,807
12,657,482 8,224,287
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17 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables includes the payable to trade suppliers and any other payables other than the financial
liabilities and other liabilities. These payables are recorded at the amount expected to be payable as at the reporting

date.
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
TDS payable 14,307,096 6,131,415
VAT Payable 38,479,131 23,990,568
Service fee payable 21,766,205 18,379,440
Payable to employee 3,160,107 -
Dividend Payable 1,525,046 3,278,750
Payable Survey Fee - -
Payable to Other - -
79,237,585 51,780,173

18 Share Capital

The Company has issued ordinary shares that are classified as equity. Incremental external costs that are directly

attributable to the issue of these shares are recognised in equity, net of tax.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Shares as at 1st Shrawan 538,291,900 538,291,900
Add: Adjustment -
Add: Bonus Shared Issued 462,931,000 -
Add: Right Shared Issued
Add: Addition this year
Add: Calls in Advance -
Shares as at 31st Ashad 1,001,222,900 538,291,900
18.1 Reconciliation of No. of Shares
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Ordinary Shares as at 1st Shrawan 5,382,919 5,382,919
Add: Adjustment - -
Add: Bonus Shared Issued 4,629,310 -
Add: Right Shared Issued - -
Add: Addition this year - -
Add: Calls in Advance = -
Ordinary Shares as at 31st Ashad 10,012,229 5,382,919
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All issued shares are fully paid and shares of the Company are listed on the Nepal stock exchange. The holders
of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per

share at General Meetings of the Company.

19 Share premium

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Share premium - -
20 Reserves & Surplus
20.1 Capital reserves
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Catastrophic reserves 95,190,121 80,770,056
Insurance Fund 631,435,772 | 488,791,425
Total 726,625,893 | 569,561,481
20.2 General Reserves
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Retained Earnings (35,575,455) 389,136,391
Total (35,575,455) | 389,136,391
20.3 Other Reserves
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Insurance Reserve 49,500,475 49,500,475
Regulatory Reserve - -
Deferred Tax Reserve 17,740,467 18,142,798
Other Free reserve - -
Fair value reserve 5,816,454 (4,562,220)
Actuarial reserve (33,206,872) | (16,814,958)
Rent Equalization Reserve 978,079
Total 40,828,603 46,266,095
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20.3.1 Fair value reserve

Fair value reserves comprise the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income and is carried forward until the respective assets are derecognised.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Balance as at 1 Shrawan (4,562,220) 16,450,438
Other comprehensive income 10,378,674 | (21,012,658)
Balance as at 31 Ashad 5,816,454 (4,562,220)

20.3.2 Actuarial Reserve

Actuarial reserve include the actuarial gains/(losses) arising from valuation of gratuity and leave encashment liability

as required by NAS 19 - Employee Benefits.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Balance as at 1 Shrawan (16,814,958) | (19,148,903)
Other comprehensive income (16,391,914) 2,333,946
Balance as at 31 Ashad (33,206,872) | (16,814,958)

21 Net Premiums

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Gross earned premium
Premiums ceded to reinsurers

2,176,653,007
(1,187,428,833)

1,837,044,124
(973,129,540)

Net Earned Premium 989,224,174 864,814,584
21.1 Gross premiums on insurance contracts
For the year ended

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs

Class-wise
Motor 1,065,475,129 820,812,044
Aviation - -
Engineering 202,965,460 | 236,581,567
Fire 534,111,457 | 467,618,751
Marine 175,486,391 146,789,921
Miscellaneous 157,907,524 139,171,120
Crops and cattle 40,344,868 26,970,221
Laghu 362,178 500

2,176,653,007

1,837,944,124
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21.2 Premiums ceded to reinsurers on insurance contracts

22

23

For the year ended
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FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Class-wise
Motor 309,579,976 177,749,473
Aviation - -
Engineering 196,261,350 | 233,924,108
Fire 360,085,414 | 283,636,572
Marine 144,983,815 124,700,857
Miscellaneous 144,493,756 131,542,353
Crops and cattle 32,024,522 21,576,177
Laghu -
1,187,428,833 | 973,129,540
Fees and Commission Income
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Reinsurance commission income 361,263,508 298,748,657
Deferred Reinsurance commission income (44,176,216) | (31,838,594)
317,087,292 266,910,063
Investment income
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Interest income 197,451,441 140,420,475
Dividend income 726,015 3,692,371
198,177,456 144,112,846
23.1 Interest income
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Government securities - 282,756
Commercial Banks Fixed Deposits 132,885,648 83,171,604
Development Banks Fixed Deposits 34,256,405 20,705,940
Interest on citizen investment trust units of currrent year 3,996,887 3,165,469
Interest on citizen investment trust units of past year 144,472 6,635,039
House Rent Income 10,051,438 10,261,299
Finance Companies Fixed Deposits 2,960,330 1,638,034
Debenture of Commercial Banks and Finance Companies 8,035,837 8,050,366
Saving & Revolving Account 5,120,424 6,509,968
197,451,441 140,420,475
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23.2 Dividend income

Revenue recognition of dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Dividend from Ordinary Shares of Public Limited Company 726,015 303,561
Dividend form Mutual Fund - 3,388,810
Dividend from Preference Shares - -
726,015 3,692,371

24 Net realised gains and losses

Net realised gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss on investments include gains and losses on
financial assets. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference between net sales
proceeds and the original or amortised cost and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Gain/(Loss) on sale of Mutual Fund - 3,797,894
Gain/(Loss) from Sale of Equity investment - -
- 3,797,894

25 Fair value gains and losses

This includes the gains and losses arising from changes in fair value on financial instruments classified as financial

asset at fair value through profit or loss, if any.

Fair value gains and losses

FY 2075-76
Rs

FY 2074-75
Rs

26 Other Income

Other income includes disposal gains/ lossess on property, plant and equipment and miscellaneous income. Profit
or loss on sale of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the period in which the sale occurs and is classified

under other income.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Foreign Exchange Income/(Loss) 2,104,733 (2,157,313)
Miscellaneous Income 637,469 840,058
Others Income 424,092 29,732
Other Direct Income 2,517,556 2,087,672
Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets 3,312,739 3,951,527
8,996,589 4,751,676
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Net benefits and claims paid
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Gross benefits and claims paid
Claims ceded to reinsurers

FY 2075-76
Rs

FY 2074-75
Rs

(956,421,643)
442,188,913

1,177,035,224)
733,082,339

(514,232,730)

(443,952,885)

Change in Insurance contract liabilities

Change in Gross insurance contract liabilities

Change in insurance contract outstanding claims provision
Change in charged for Incurred But not Reported

Change in unexpired risk reserve provision

Change in Reinsurance Assets
Change in reinsurace asset created on outstanding claim provision

Change in Reinsurace Asset created on unexpired risk reserve

Net change in Insurance contract liabilities

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
(354,874,441) | 623,041,137
(62,150,706) (1,858,053)
(122,402,052) | (183,225,481)
(539,427,199) | 437,957,603
218,292,135 | (554,510,013)
39,534,966 70,818,448
257,827,101 | (483,691,565)
(281,600,098) | (45,733,962)

Finance costs

Finance costs include the finance charges in respect of Bank loan, other Financial liabilities at amortized cost and

in respect of finance leases as per NAS 17 Leases.

Interest Expense

FY 2075-76
Rs

FY 2074-75
Rs
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30 Other operating and administrative expenses

Recognition of other operating and administrative expenses

Other operating and administrative expenses are recognised on accrual basis. All expenditure incurred in the running
of the business and in maintaining the property, plant and equipment are charged to the statement of profit or loss.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Staff expenses 216,058,112 173,983,391
Administrative expenses 99,239,541 67,963,628
Depreciation 20,415,219 19,149,605
Share Issue Expenses - -
Share Registration Expenses 105,000 39,375
Share Listing Expenses - -
Other share Related Expenses 4,278 172,724
Agent Commission 44,634,126 41,061,918
Reinsurance Commission expenses 423,366 542,081
Service Charge 9,892,242 8,648,146
Other Direct expenses 2,368,198 1,401,300
Impairment loss - -
393,140,082 | 312,962,168
30.1 Staff expenses

For the year ended
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Employees Related Expenses 161,294,267 96,893,841
Provision for Staff Bonus 32,451,260 48,173,804
Contributions made to the Employees' Provident Fund (EPF) - 3,761,688
Contributions made to the Employees' Trust Fund (ETF) - -
Defined benefit plan expenses 22,312,585 25,154,058
Total employee benefit expenses 216,058,112 173,983,391

Provision for employee bonus has been calculated on NFRS profit.
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30.2 Administrative expenses

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Rent 16,102,272 10,184,526
Water & Electricity 3,399,382 2,279,608
Repair & Maintenance 2,749,655 3,052,958
Communication Expenses 8,222,796 5,879,814
Printing & Stationery 8,177,757 4,926,260
Miscellaneous Office & Materials Expenses 7,864,374 5,285,191
Conveyance Expenses 8,490,196 6,416,377
Travelling Expenses 2,247,080 2,558,517
Agent Tranning Expense 1,284,138 148,932
Agent Others - -
Insurance Premium 1,281,845 1,100,124
Security Expense 735,000 506,048
Legal and Consultancy Fee 1,882,507 1,295,430
News Papers, Books & Periodical 256,581 97,937
Publicity and Advertisement 7,084,327 7,100,955
Business Promotion Expense 130,290 1,386,114
Premium on Govt.Bond Purchase (68,899) 50,401
Guest Entertainment Expenses 7,267,015 4,449,935
Gift & Donation 90,005 1,075,300
Expense Related to Board Meeting 1,235,999 1,097,754
Expense Related to Committee/Sub-Committee 713,482 378,000
Annual General Meeting Expense 406,038 454,687
Expense Related to Audit 956,004 720,000
Bank Charges 841,608 677,869
Rates and Taxes 1,934,236 1,038,793
VAT Expenses 177,373 308,917
Revenue Stamp 1,860,714 1,424,585
Seminar Expense 3,245,594 585,460
Computer Expense 3,654,857 2,124,376
Subscription & Renewal Fees 702,965 361,950
Postage and courier - -
Miscellaneous Expense 868,064 360,485
Cleaning Expenses 554,931 426,023
Generator Expenses 111,617 22,100
Software Expenses 160,500 120,000
Penalty 4,619,239 68,202
Provision for Investment Loss (Share) = -
Other Provision - -
Total 99,239,541 67,963,628
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31 Income tax expense
Recognition of income tax expense
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, when it is recognised in
equity.
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
Income Tax (126,302,074) | (155,045,063)
Deferred Tax (Expenses)/Income (2,979,433) 8,422,977
(129,281,507) | (146,622,086)
31.1 Deferred Tax (Expenses)/Income
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
GAAP Deferred tax (expenses)/Income 1,556,303 9,173,481
NFRS Adjustment Deferred tax effect (4,535,736) (750,504)
(2,979,433) 8,422,977
32 Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Company presents basic and diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) for its ordinary shares.
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, which comprise
share options granted to employees.
FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs
For the year ended
Profit for the year (Rs.) 195,231,094 335,115,962
Weighted average number of shares 10,012,229 5,382,919
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) 19.50 62.26
Weighted average number of shares
Issued ordinary shares as at 1 Shrawan 5,382,919 5,382,919
Shares issued during the year 4,629,310 -
10,012,229 5,382,919
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32.1 Restated earnings per share

33

34

34.1

Company has issued 86% of bonus share to the exisiting shareholder for the year 2074/75.

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75

Rs Rs

Bonus share to be issued [A] - 4,629,310
Restated share (weighted average no of share o/s +[A]) 10,012,229 10,012,229
Profit for the year 195,231,094 335,115,962
Restated Earning Per Share 19.50 33.47

Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by the
Company'’s shareholders. Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are paid.

Dividends proposed by the Board of Directors after the reporting date is not recognised as a liability and is only
disclosed as a note to the financial statements.

Final dividend

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs

Final dividend proposed (Rs.) - -
Number of ordinary shares - -
Final dividend per share (Rs.) o -

Related Party Transactions

The Company carries out transactions in the ordinary course of business with parties who are defined as related
parties in NAS 24 - Related Party Disclosures.

Details of the related party transactions are reported below.

Identification of Related Party

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statements

a.

b.

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if that person:

(i)
(i)
(iii)

has control or joint control of the reporting entity
has significant influence over the reporting entity or
is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting entity.

An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

(i)
(ii)

(vi)

The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting entity or
an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers
are also related to the reporting entity.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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34.2 Transactions and outstanding balances with the key management personnel

According to the NAS 24 - Related Party Disclosures, key management personnel are those having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity.

Sagarmatha Insurance company considers its Board of Directors and their immediate family members as key
management personnel of the Company.

KMPs of the Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd. includes members of Board of directors and Chief Executive
Officer namely:

Name of key management personnel Position

Ram Krishna Manandhar Chairman

Lokmanya Golchha Director

Siddharth Mani Rajdhandari Director

Ajit R. Gunawardena Director

Kirti Kumar Joshi Public Director

Gajendra lal Shrestha Public Director

Nirmala Devi Manandhar Public Director

Chunky Chhetri Chief Executive Officer

S.K. Rawal Deputy Chief Executive Officer

a) Key management personnel compensation

Transactions for the Year ended 31 Ashad 2076 Board of Director | Chief Executive Officer
Salary,Allowance and other facilities - 5,183,338
Board of director Allowance 672,000 -
Committee meeting fee 413,000 -
Newspaper and other facilities 607,000 -
Total 1,692,000 5,183,338

b) Other transactions with key management personnel

Transactions

FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs Rs

For the year ended
Premium - -
Claim - -

Total - -
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35

Accounting Clasification and Fair Value

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction on the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

In the principal market for the asset or liability or ;
In the absence of the principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

Fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. When available,
the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active market for that instrument.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available and represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. For units in unit trusts, fair value is determined by reference
to published bid-values. If a market for a financial instrument is not active, then the Company establishes fair value
using a valuation technique.

Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties (if
available), reference to the current fair value of other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analyses and option pricing models. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs,
relies as little as possible on estimates specific to the Company, incorporates all factors that market participants
would consider in setting a price, and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial
instruments. Inputs to valuation techniques reasonably represent market expectations and measures of the risk-
return factors inherent in the financial instrument. The Company calibrates valuation techniques and tests them for
validity using prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on other available
observable market data.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction price, i.e. the fair
value of the consideration given or received, unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by comparison
with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument, i.e. without modification or repackaging,
or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable markets.

When transaction price provides the best evidence of fair value at initial recognition, the financial instrument is initially
measured at the transaction price and any difference between this price and the value initially obtained from a
valuation model is subsequently recognised in the statement of profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life
of the instrument but not later than when the valuation is supported wholly by observable market data or the
transaction is closed out.

Any difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the amount that would be determined at that date
using a valuation technique in a situation in which the valuation is dependent on unobservable is not recognised in
the statement of profit or loss immediately, but is recognised over the life of the instrument on an appropriate basis
or when the instrument is redeemed, transferred or sold, or the fair value becomes observable. Assets and long
positions are measured at a bid price; liabilities and short positions are measured at an asking price. Fair values
reflect the credit risk of the instrument and include adjustments to take account of the credit risk of the Company
and the counter party where appropriate. Fair value estimates obtained from models are adjusted for any other
factors, such as liquidity risk or model uncertainties; to the extent that the Company believes a third-party market
participant would take them into accounting pricing a transaction.

Financial assets and liabilities based on the accounting classification with their carrying values and fair values are
tabulated below.

Continue ...
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As at 31 Ashad 2076

Fair value
Fair value | through other Total
through | comprehensive Amortized carrying
profit or loss income cost amount Fair Value
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Financial assets
Measured at fair value through PL - - - - -
Measured at fair value through OCI -| 328,654,230 -| 320,345,010 8,309,221
Measured at amortised cost - -11,986,425,713| 1,986,425,713 -
Reinsurance receivables - - - - -
Other Insurance receivables - - - - -
Total -| 328,654,230 |1,986,425,713 | 2,306,770,723 8,309,221
Financial liabilities
Reinsurance payables - - - - -
Other financial liabilities - - - - _
As at 32 Ashad 2075
Fair value
Fair value | through other Total
through | comprehensive Amortized carrying
profit or loss income cost amount Fair Value
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Financial assets
Measured at fair value through PL - - - - -
Measured at fair value through OCI -| 220,766,615 -| 227,284,072 (6,517,457)
Measured at amortised cost - -11,277,015,028 | 1,277,083,927 (68,899)
Reinsurance receivables - - - - -
Other Insurance receivables - - - - -
Total -| 220,766,615 |1,277,015,028 | 1,504,367,999 | (6,586,356)
Financial liabilities
Reinsurance payables - - - - -
Other financial liabilities - - - - -
Continue ...
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As at

31 Ashad 2076

35.1 Determination of fair value of Financial Insturment

Fair value measurement

The following table analyses financial assets measured at fair value at the reporting date, by the level in the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised.

31 Ashad 2076 32 Ashad 2075
As at
Level 1| Level 2 Level 3 Total| Level 1|Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value through OCI
Quoted equities 124,428,885 - -| 124,428,885 72,111,343 - -l 72,111,343
Unquoted equities - -| 167,766,800 | 167,766,800 - -| 118,661,700 | 118,661,700
Quoted mutual funds 36,458,545 - -| 36,458,545| 29,993,572 - -| 29,993,572

Financial assets at fair value through PL

Quoted equities - - - - - R . R
Unquoted equities - - - - - - - -
Quoted mutual funds - - - - - B, - _

Total

160,887,430 -| 167,766,800 | 328,654,230 102,104,915

118,661,700 | 220,766,615

36

Employee Defined Benefit Obligations

Defined contribution plans

As at 31 Ashad 2076 | 32 Ashad 2075
Rs. Rs.

Employees' Provident Fund - -
Contribution to Citizen Investment Trust Fund - -

Recognition and measurement of employee defined benefit obligations

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The liability recognised
in the financial statements in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation
as at the reporting date. The value of defined benefit obligation is calculated by a qualified Actuary as at the reporting
date, using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method as recommended by NAS 19 - Employee Benefits. The Actuarial
valuation involves making assumptions about discount rate, salary increment rate and balance service period of
employees. Due to the long-term nature of the plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

The re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability which comprises actuarial gains and losses are charged or
credited to the statement of other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. The assumptions based
on which the results of the actuarial valuation was determined, are included in Note 36.2.4 to the financial statements.

Cost of defined benefit obligations (gratuity) is determined using actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation involves
making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases and mortality

rates.

Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
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36.1 Defined benefit plans - Provision for employee benefits

As at

Present value of funded obligation (Gratuity)
Present value of unfunded obligation (Leave encashment)

31 Ashad 2076

32 Ashad 2075

Rs. Rs.
84,559,408 60,721,959
29,386,118 19,774,760

113,945,526 80,496,719

36.2 Movement in the present value of the employee benefits

As at

As at 1 Shrawan

Expenses recognised in statement of profit or loss

Payments during the year

Actuarial loss recognised in statement of comprehensive income
As at 32/31 Ashad

31 Ashad 2076

32 Ashad 2075

Rs. Rs.
80,496,719 76,217,967
17,523,225 14,962,525
(7,009,623) (4,880,708)
22,935,205 (5,803,065)

113,945,526 80,496,719

36.2.1 Expenses recognised in statement of profit or loss

As at

For the year ended
Interest cost
Current service cost

31 Ashad 2076

32 Ashad 2075

Rs. Rs.
6,920,984 5,695,921
10,602,241 9,266,604
17,523,225 14,962,525

36.2.2 Expenses recognised in statement of comprehensive income

As at

For the year ended
Actuarial loss

31 Ashad 2076
Rs.

32 Ashad 2075
Rs.

22,935,205

(5,803,065)

36.2.3 Valuation of employee benefit obligations

As at 32 Ashad 2075, 31 Ashad 2074 and 31 Ashad 2073, gratuity liability was actuarially valued under the
Projected Unit Credit method by Global risk consultants Mumbai, a firm with actuarial expertise as required by

NAS 19 - Employee Benefits.
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As at

31 Ashad 2076

32 Ashad 2075

(a) Discount rate

(b) Salary increase frequency
(c) Withdrawal Rate

(e) Mortality rates

Employee information
Average Attained Age
Average Past Service
Total Monthly Salary
Average Monthly Salary
No of Employees

9%
Once a Year
12%

Nepali Assured Lives
Mortality (2009)

31.89
4.49
6,290,894
19,006
331

9%
Once a Year
12%

Nepali Assured
Lives Mortality (2009)

35.20
7.50
2,654,075
17,694
265

36.2.5.a Expected Cash Flows on Gratuity

As at 31 Ashad 2076 | 32 Ashad 2075
Year 1 12,827,029 7,054,894
Year 2 18,706,845 10,299,820
Year 3 13,244,565 13,984,279
Year 4 13,447,173 9,634,440
Year 5 10,030,962 9,539,638
Year 6 to 10 33,055,971 29,007,702

36.2.5.b Expected Cash Flows on Leave Encashment

As at 31 Ashad 2076 | 32 Ashad 2075
Year 1 5,080,443 2,818,661
Year 2 5,680,426 3,264,021
Year 3 4,283,022 4,021,664
Year 4 4,257,800 2,922,105
Year 5 3,327,913 2,875,513
Year 6 to 10 11,666,947 9,329,624
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37 Risk Management Framework
(a) Insurance and financial risk

(i) Insurance risks

The Company principally issues the following types of general insurance contracts : motor, Fire and engineering,
marine, Micro, Laghu and miscellaneous. Risks under non-life insurance policies usually cover twelve months
duration.

For general insurance contracts, the most significant risks arise from natural disasters, climate changes and
terrorist activities. For longer tail claims that take some years to settle, there is also inflation risk.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and
geographical areas. This is largely achieved through diversification across industry sectors and geography.
Furthemore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing cliams, regular detailed review of claims
handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are established to reduce the risk
exposure of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy of actively managing an promptly pursuing
claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the
business. inflation risk is mitigated by taking expected inflation in to account when estimating insurance contract
liabilities. The Company identifies and categorises risks in terms of their source, their impact on the Company
and preferred strategies for dealing with them.

The Company has also limited its exposure by imposing maximum claim amounts on certain contracts as well
as the use of reinsurance arrangements in order to limit exposure to catastrophic events (e.g. flood damage).

The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components.
- Product design risk

Underwriting risk

Reinsurance risk

Claims risk

64

Operational risk

Mitigation strategies

Product design risk

The Company issues non-life insurance
contracts such as motor, fire and engineering,
marine and miscellaneous. Product designs of
the portfolio may be outdated due to changes
in the climate leading to natural disasters,
behavioral trends of people due to changing life
styles and steady escalation of costs
in respect of spare parts in the industry.

Diversification of insurance contracts across a large geographical
areas.

Variability of risk is improved by careful selection and implementation
of underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks
are diversified in terms of type of risk.

Strategies are periodically reviewed and suitable action taken.

Constant watch on internal and external factors that may impede
planned objectives.

Underwriting risk

Underwriting risk generally refers to the risk of
loss on underwriting activity in the insurance.
In insurance, underwriting risk may either arise
from an inaccurate assessment of the risks
entailed in writing an insurance policy, or from
factors wholly out of the underwriter's control.

Improve knowledge and skills of the underwriting staff.

Statistical databases are maintained on loss making clients to ensure
such clients are strategically declined.

Review profitability, pricing, terms and conditions of various products.

Financial authority limits are in place for underwriting clearly
prescribing the limits to underwrite based on the sum assured and
risk.
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37.1 Risk Management Framework (Continued)

Reinsurance risk

Reinsurance risk refers to the inability of the ceding
company or the primary insurer to obtain insurance
from a reinsurer at the right time and at an appropriate

Global trusted and stable portfolio of reinsurance
companies which are rated highly used for reinsurance
placements.

cost. . . . . .
Very close and professional relationship is maintained with
all reinsurers.

Provisions are made for long outstanding reinsurance
receivables.

Outstanding reinsurance receivables are reviewed on a
monthly basis to ensure that all dues are collected or set-off
against payables on time.

Claims risk

The risk of actual claims or the timing thereof, may
differ from expectations.

Claim intimation is done through the call centre which
works on 24x7 basis.

Customers are advised of consequence of inadequate sum
insured and excesses.

Cross check information from various issues and segregation
of approval and payment duties.

Qualified independent actuary carries out independent
valuation on a quarterly basis in order to assess adequacy
of reserves.

Significant outstanding claims are subjected to periodic
reviews by the management and the Board of Directors.

Concentration risk

Fiscal Year ending 31 Ashad 2076

Portfolio Gross Premium Net | Concentration | Concentration
premium Ceeded Premium % % PY
Aviation - - - - -
Crops and cattle 40,344,868 32,024,522 8,320,346 0.84% 0.62%
Engineering 202,965,460 | 196,261,350 6,704,110 0.68% 0.31%
Fire 534,111,457 | 360,085,414 | 174,026,043 17.59% 21.27%
Marine 175,486,391 | 144,983,815 30,502,576 3.08% 2.55%
Laghu 362,178 - 362,178 0.04% 0.00%
Miscellaneous 157,907,524 | 144,493,756 | 13,413,768 1.36% 0.88%
Motor 1,065,475,129 | 309,579,976 | 755,895,153 76.41% 74.36%
Total 2,176,653,007 |1,187,428,833 | 989,224,174 100.00% 100.00%
Continue ...
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37.2 Risk Management Framework (Continued)

Governance framework
The Board of Directors of the Company has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company
to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, products and services offered. The
Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board is ultimately responsible for monitoring compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and
procedures. The Board is assisted in these functions by internal audit department and the Board Audit Committee.
The internal audit department undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures,
the results of which are reported to the Board.

Regulatory framework

Regulators are primarily interested in protecting the rights of policyholders and monitor them closely to ensure that
the Company is satisfactorily managing affairs for policyholders' benefit. At the same time, regulators are also
interested in ensuring that the Company maintains an appropriate solvency position to meet unforeseen liabilities
arising from economic shocks or natural disasters.

As an insurer, the operations of the Company are subject to regulatory supervision of the Insurance Board of Nepal.
The Company has taken necessary action to comply with and complied with applicable regulations throughout the
year.

(ii) Financial risks

Nature and extent of risk arising from financial instruments

The Company has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments.
e Credit risk

e Liquidity risk

e Market risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks and the Company’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risks.
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37.3 Risk Management Framework (Continued)
e Credit risk/loan risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company, if a customer or counter-party to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations in accordance with agreed terms and arises principally from the Company’s
premium receivables, reinsurance receivables, investments in debt securities and deposits with financial institutions
such as time deposits, demand deposits, etc.

Management of credit risk - Insurance receivables

The company has no any policy for providing Credit facility against issued policy document as per regulatory
restriction.As a result of rigourus follow up of outstanding premiums, the policies which are not settled within the
approved credit periods are cancelled on a regular basis. The Company checks the status of the outstanding premium
before settling claims to reduce the credit risk. The Company has implemented an impairment review for premium
receivables periodically and provide for the same based on the results of the review.

Management of credit risk - Reinsurance receivables
Credit risk with regard to reinsurance receivables is mitigated by selecting the reinsurers with higher credit ratings
and reviewing their ratings periodically. The following table depicts the reinsurers of the Company with their ratings.

Reinsurer Rating Issuing agency
General Insurance Corporation of India, Mumbai, India A- A.M. Best
Zep-Re (PTA) Reinsurance Co.), Nairobi, Kenya B+ A.M. Best
Hannover Ruckvesicherung AG, Malaysian Branch A+ A.M. Best
Trust International insurnce & Reinsurance Company BSC ©, Trust Re, Bahrain A- A.M. Best
Asian Reinsurance Corporation, Bangkok, Thailand B+ A.M. Best
Kenya Reinsurance Corporation Ltd., Nairobi, Kenya B+ A.M. Best
Oriental Insurance Company Limited, New Delhi, India B++ A.M. Best

Management of credit risk - Financial investments (Except listed equity securities)

The Company evaluates the credit ratings of the respective investee and/or respective issue prior to the investment
decision are made. In addition, the Company focuses on tolerable levels concentration risk and portfolio monitoring
in line with the Company’s risk appetite.

Management of credit risk - Cash at bank

The Company's exposure to credit risk with relevant to cash and cash equivalents is minimal since these balances
are maintained at banks and finance companies with high credit ratings.
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37.4 Risk Management Framework (Continued)

Collateral adequacy

As a general principle, the Company endeavors to obtain adequate collateral to secure its investments as applicable.
The Company focuses on quality and responsibility of such collateral to mitigate potential credit losses. The
management monitors the market value of collateral, and requests additional collateral in accordance with the
underlying agreement. A reasonable margin of safety is maintained in collateral values as follows.

Carrying value of investments in financial assets at
amortized cost

Fair value of collateral

Excess value of collateral

31 Ashad 2076
Rs.

32 Ashad 2075
Rs.

31 Ashad 2074
Rs.

1,986,425,713

1,277,015,028

120,638,208

(1,986,425,713)

(1,277,015,028)

(120,638,208)

68

e Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. In respect of catastrophic events, there is also
a liquidity risk associated with timing differences between gross cash out-flows and expected reinsurance recoveries.

Management of liquidity risk
The following controls are in place to mitigate liquidity risk which is faced by the Company.

i. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that funds available are adequate to meet claim
payments to its policyholders and to ensure operational expenses are paid when they are due.

ii. Main sources of the Company’s funding are capital and gross written premium. The Company also maintains a
portfolio of readily marketable securities to strengthen its liquidity position. Investment durations are diversified,
depending on the cash flow needs of the Company and maturity periods are regularly reviewed. Cash flow
analysis is done prior to investments are made.

iii. The Company's treaty agreements with reinsurers contain clauses permitting the immediate draw down of funds
to meet claim payments should claim events exceed a certain agreed size.

iv. Availability of a stand-by overdraft facility to be used only in the event of an emergency.

v. Determining the maturity profiles of insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets based on the estimated
timing of net cash outflows from recognised insurance liabilities.

vi. Planning for all large cash outflows in advance and making necessary arrangements to ensure the availability
of funds to meet such outflows.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The Company monitors the liquidity position of the Company to asses funding requirements. Liquid assets include
cash and short term investments and bills purchased. The Company also monitors maturity profile of its assets and
liabilities.

Maturity profiles

The following table summarises the maturity profile of the financial assets, financial liabilities and insurance contract
liabilities. Unearned premiums have been excluded from the analysis as they are not contractual obligations. The
Company maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that can be easily liquidated in the event of
an unforeseeable interruption of cash flow. The Company also has committed lines of credit that it can access to
meet liquidity needs.

Continue ...
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37.5 Risk Management Framework (Continued)
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Contractual maturities of undiscounted cash flows of financial assets and financial liabilities are provided below.

As at 31 Ashad 2076

Financial assets/liabilities 0-3 312 1-2 Over 2 | No Stated Total
Months Months Years Years Maturity
Financial assets
Fair value through profit or loss - - - - - -
Listed equity securities - - - - | 124,428,885 124,428,885
Fair value through other comprehensive income - - - -| 204,225,345 204,225,345
Amortized cost - - - [117,790,624.00 - 117,790,624
Fixed deposit - -| 1,868,635,089 - - 1,868,635,089
Government bond - - - - - -
Claims Advance 79,984,357.00 - - - 79,984,357
Reinsurance receivables - | 438,621,022.00 - - - 438,621,022
Other Insurance receivables (gross) -| 503,272,367.00 - - - 503,272,367
Cash and short term deposits 296,361,020 - - - - 296,361,020
Total 296,361,020 | 1,021,877,746 | 1,868,635,089 | 117,790,624 | 328,654,230 | 3,633,318,709
Financial liabilities
Due to other Insurance Company
Reinsurance payable - 269,381,320 - - - 269,381,320
Other financial liabilites - 253,753,068 - - - 253,753,068
Other Liabilities 12,657,482 - - - 12,657,482
Trade and Other Payable - 4,685,153 - - - 4,685,153
Insurance Claim outstanding Gross 756,630,962 - - - 756,630,962
Total -| 1,297,107,985 - - - | 1,297,107,985
Net Financial Assets 296,361,020 | (275,230,239) | 1,868,635,089 | 117,790,624 | 328,654,230 | 2,336,210,724
Statutory Payable - 74,552,432 - - - 74,552,432
Net Assets forming part of Liquidity Profile 296,361,020 | (349,782,671) | 1,868,635,089 | 117,790,624 | 328,654,230 | 2,261,658,292
As at 32 Ashad 2075
Financial assets/liabilities 0-3 312 1-2 Over 2 | No Stated Total
Months Months Years Years Maturity
Financial assets
Fair value through profit or loss - - - - - -
Listed equity securities - - - - 72,111,343 72,111,343
Fair value through other comprehensive income - - - -| 148,655,272 148,655,272
Amortized cost - - -| 98,829,281.00 - 98,829,281
Fixed deposit - -| 1,173,571,246 - - 1,173,571,246
Government bond - 4,614,501.00 - - - 4,614,501
Reinsurance receivables - | 220,328,887.00 - - - 220,328,887
Other Insurance receivables (gross) - | 480,871,936.00 - - - 480,871,936
Cash and short term deposits 492,011,352 - - - - 492,011,352
Total 492,011,352 705,815,324 | 1,173,571,246 98,829,281 | 220,766,615 | 2,690,993,818
Financial liabilities
Reinsurance payable - 106,060,006 - - - 106,060,006
Other financial liabilites - 194,636,017 - - - 194,636,017
Other Liabilities - 8,224,287 - - - -
Trade and Other Payable - 51,780,173 - - - -
Insurance Claim outstanding Gross - 401,756,521 - - - -
Total - 762,457,004 - - 300,696,023
Statutory Payable - 48,501,423 - - - -
Net Financial Assets 492,011,352 ( (105,143,103) | 1,173,571,246 98,829,281 | 220,766,615 | 2,390,297,795
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37.6 Risk Management Framework (Continued)

70

o Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes
in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. Market risk is an aggregation
of,

a) Interest rate risk
b) Currency risk
c) Equity price risk

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in market interest rates. Floating rate instruments typically expose the Company to cash flow interest risk, whereas
fixed interest rate instruments expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk.

Management of interest rate risk

In order to mitigate the interest rate risk faced by the Company, the management follows the guidelines set out in
the investment policy which is regularly reviewed by the Investment Committee. Among such guidelines, following
guidlines included to mitigate the interest rate risk faced by the Company.

ii. Forecasting and monitoring future cash inflows and outflows when formulating investment strategies.

iii. Relative amounts of the each portfolio will be determined by the Company's liquidity position, availability of market
values, individual secuities' risk/return profiles.

Sensitivity analysis - Interest rate risk

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk reflects the changes in the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument at the reporting date in response to assumed movements in market interest rates. The sensitivity of
reported fair value of financial instruments is monitored by assessing the projected changes in the fair value of
financial instruments held by the portfolios in response to assumed parallel shift in the yield curve by +/- 100 basis
points and +/- 200 basis points.

PBT* - Profit before tax

b) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to the changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company's principal transactions are carried out in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.) and hence, its exposure to
foreign exchange risk arises primarily with respect to reinsurance recoveries and US Dollars denominated assets
developed out of aforementioned recoveries.

Management of currency risk
The currency risk faced by the Company is minimal since no material liabilities or assets were recorded on foreign
currency denominated as at the reporting date.

Sensitivity analysis - Currency risk

The tables below indicate the currencies to which the Company had significant exposures as at 32 Ashad 2075 and
the effect to the gains/(losses) in case of a market exchange rates up/drop by 1%. The analysis below calculates
the effect of a reasonably possible movement of the currency rate against the Nepalese Rupee, with all other
variables held constant, on the statement of profit or loss and the equity.

Continue ...
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37.7 Risk Management Framework (Continued)
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c) Equity price risk

The risk of fluctuation in fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument due to a change in market prices,
other than those occurring due to interest rate risk or currency risk, is referred to as equity price risk. Accordingly,
the equity price risk affects the Company's investments in equity instruments.

Management of equity price risk

In order to mitigate the equity price risk faced by the Company, the management follows the guidelines set out in
the investment policy. The Company's investment policy guides the management to set/monitor objectives and
constraints on investments, diversification plans as well as limits on equity exposure. Compliance with the policy
is monitored and the exposure and instances of non-compliance are reported to the Board of Directors. The policy
is reviewed regularly for pertinence and for changes in the risk environment. The Company manages its equity price
risk by investing in relatively less volatile sectors and in different sectors.

Sensitivity analysis - Equity price risk

Sensitivity analysis for equity risk reflects how changes in the fair value of equity securities at the reporting date
will fluctuate in response to assumed changes in equity market prices. The movements in the fair value of equity
securities monitored by assessing the projected changes in the fair value of equity securities held by the portfolios
in response to assumed equity price movements of +/- 10% and +/- 20%.

Operational risks

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls
fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead
to financial loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by intiating a rigorous control
framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. Controls
include effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education
and assessment processess, including the use of internal audit. Business risks such as changes in environment,
technology and the industry are monitered through the Company's strategic planning and budgeting process.

Net change in operational assets and liabilities FY 2075-76 FY 2074-75
Rs. Rs.

Net change in reinsurance receivables 257,827,101 (483,691,565)
Net change in receivables and other assets 75,919,186 (220,172,624)
Net change in insurance liabilities 539,427,199 (437,957,603)
Net change in other liabilities 237,702,571 (45,987,401)
)

1,110,876,057 | (1,187,809,193
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38

38.1

39

39.1

Events After the Reporting Date

Impact of Covid-19

The Government of Nepal has announced complete lockdown from March 24, 2020 ( F/Y 2076/77) onwards to control
the spread of COVID-19 Pandemic in the country. The management has assessed the effect of lockdown and is of
the view that the lockdown does not have any material impact on the operations till the reporting date. However the
revenue and operating result of the company during the year and thereafter may be declined.

The spread of COVID-19 pandemic has severe impact on global economies including Nepal where businesses are
being forced to cease or limit operations for more than 10 weeks resulting in an economic slowdown. Although, the
Government and central bank have responded with monetary and fiscal interventions to stabilize the economic
conditions, there is no much relief available to the Company as of the issue of these financial statements. Further,
the company has assessed its ability to continue as a going concern and the management has determined that there
is no any adjusting or non-adjusting event.

Capital Commitments and Contingencies

Capital commitments
The company doesnot have any Capital Commitments as on 31st Ashad, 2076.

39.2 Contingencies

72

In the opinion of the Directors and the Company’s lawyers, pending litigation against the Company will not have a
material impact on the reported financial results or future operations of the Company.

All pending litigation for claims have been evaluated and adequate provisions have been made in the financial
statements.

The Company has contingencies amounting Rs. 89,86,724. This amount has been re-assessed by Tax Authority for
the year 2066/67, 2067/68 and 2068/69. The company, being unsatisfied with the amount assessed by the Tax
Authority, has submitted an application to IRD for Administrative review.

Additional Tax of NRS. 59,871 has been provisioned as tax expense for the year 2071/72, as determined by the final
review by Tax Authority.
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Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at 31 Ashad 2076

42.1 Reconciliation of Profit or loss

Sagarmatha

INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

2018 2019

Profit/Loss as per GAAP (A) 347,767,451 286,844,998
Adjustments due to NFRS Implementation

1. Unearned Premium (59,852,600) (54,044,546)

2. Premium ceded to reinsurers (un-accrued) 70,818,447 39,534,966

3. Un-accrued Fee and Commission income (31,838,594) (44,176,216)

4. Increase (Decrease) in Investment Income (Government Bond) (12,994) 68,899

5. Increase (Decrease) in Other operating and administrative expenses 9,408,322 18,383,074

a. Reinsurance Commission Expense 56,751 (173,163)

b. Agency Commission 1,680,765 1,015,552

c. Gratuity/Pension Expenses (7,665,160) 16,611,068

d. Leave Encashment Expenses 10,153,846 (444,971)

e. Reversal of Provision for other losses 5,512,166 1,374,588

f. Net Increase/Decrease in Staff Bonus (330,046) -

6. Increase (Decrease) in income tax expense due to NFRS implementation (750,504) (4,829,159)

a. Deferred tax income(expense) on premium amortization (3,898) 20,670

b. Deferred tax income(expense) on Gratuity 2,299,548 (4,983,320)

c. Deferred tax income(expense) on Leave encashment (3,046,154) 133,491

7. Outstanding claim - -

8. Change in reversal of provision for loss on investment 11,714,149 (4,202,906)

9. Change in Incurred but not reported (12,137,721) (41,663,361)

10. Change in Lease Expenses (684,655)

Total Adjustment (B) (12,651,494) (91,613,904)

Profit/(Loss) as per NFRS [A+B] 335,115,957 195,231,094

NFRS Profit amount differ from GAAP is due to remeasurement of following items namely deferred goss premium
income, deferred premium ceded to reinsurer, deferred fee and commission income, deferred Reinsurance commission
expense, deferred agent commission expense, Gratuty and leave encashment change as per acturial valuation,
reversal of provision for other losses, Change in staff bonus as per NFRS profit, change in outstanding claim, change
in reversal of provision for loss on investment, change in incurred but not reported.
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Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at 31 Ashad 2076

42.2 Reconciliation of Equity

78

Particulars

Year Ended
2018

Year Ended
2019

Total Equity as per GAAP(A)
Adjustments due to NFRS Implementation

1. Fair Value Reserve on Investment Available for Sale

2. Acturial Reserve on Gratuity

3. Net Increase/(Decrease) in Retained Earning
. Premium amortization

. Gratuity

Leave Encashment

. Unearned Premium Reserve

. Reinsurance Asset

Employee Bonus provision

. Reversal of other Provision

. Unearned Commission

Actuarial Reserve Adjustment
Lease Liability

Outstanding claim

Incurred but not reported

T T T o Q0 T o

Proposed dividend reversal as per NFRS
. Rent Equalisation Reserve

Total Adjustment (B)

Total Equity as per NFRS [A+B]

© N O M

1,637,605,280

1,924,100,422

Reversal of provision for loss on investment

Transfer of excess NFRS profit to Regulatory Reserve

(4,562,220)
(16,814,958)
(65,552,268)

(89,569)
4,621,355
(953,163)

(476,566,865)

491,076,445
(330,046)
9,819,399

(111,716,871)

18,587,048
4,717,752

(12,137,721)

5,816,454
(33,206,872)
(114,818,156)
16,249,103
(1,264,643)
(530,611,411)
530,611,411
(330,046)
11,193,987
(155,050,698)
14,384,142
4,717,752
(684,655)

(53,801,082)

978,079

(94,349,413)

(190,998,481)

1,543,255,867

1,733,101,941

NFRS balance of equity differ from the GAAP balance is due to remeasurement of following items namely Fair value
reserve created on investment available for sale, Acturial reserve created on gratuity as per acturial valuation, premium
on government bond amortization as per NFRS, impact of gratuity and leave encashment in retained earning, unearned
permium reserve created as per LAT report, Reinsurance Assets created on premium ceded to reinsurer, employee
bonus adjustment as per NFRS profit, Reversal of other provision, deferred commission income and expense
recognized as liability and assets and reversal of provision for loss on investment.
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Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at 31 Ashad 2076

43 Reconciliation of Cash flow statement

Sagarmatha

INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

For the year ending 31st Ashad 2076

Particular Asper GAAP Asper NFRS Difference
Cash flow from Operating Activities 391,060,370 440,741,249 49,680,879
Cash flow from Investing Activities (475,251,188) (616,529,704) (141,278,516)
Cash flow from financing Activities (1,753,738) (19,861,878) (18,108,140)
Net change in cash and cash equivalent (85,944,556) (195,650,332) (109,705,776)
Opening cash and cash equivalent 176,155,881 492,011,352 315,855,471
Closing cash and cash equivalent 90,211,325 296,361,020 206,149,695

The change in cash flow from operating activiteis as per GAAP and as per NFRS is due to following reasons:

- Decrease in extra current Assets as per NFRS
- Decrease in extra current liabilities as per NFRS
- Deferred gross premium income

- Deferred premium ceded to reinsurer

- Deferred reinsurance commission income

- Deferred Agent commission expense

- Deferred Reinsurance commission expense

- Increase in income tax expense as per NFRS
- Service Charge

- Gratuity

- Leave encashment

- Change in IBNR

- Staff bonus adjustment as per NFRS

- Reversal of provision for loss on investment

The change in cash flow from Investing activiteis as per GAAP and as per NFRS is due to following reason:

- Ammortization of Government bond

- Reclassification of fixed deposit having more than 3month as financial assets at amortized cost

- Investment in share and mutual fund valuation as per market rate ie.Available for sale

The change in cash flow from financing activiteis as per GAAP and as per NFRS is due to following reason:

- Change in Retained earning due to NFRS
- Change in reserves due to NFRS

Closing Cash and Cash Equivalent in NFRS has changed due to recognition of short term Fixed deposits and

call deposits as Cash and Cash Equivalent
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Sagarmatha

INSURANCE COMPANY LTD.

Sagarmatha Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at 31 Ashad 2076

44. Liability Adequacy Test Report (LAT) Result

Unearned premium reserve

line of business 2018 2019
Aviation - -
Agro 13,470,683 20,458,767
Eng 137,565,201 151,996,905
Fire 231,758,209 239,380,136
Marine 71,944,998 106,416,628
Laghu 120 289,205
Miscellaneous 56,830,594 51,298,363
Motor 410,392,224 474,524,077
Total 921,962,029 1,044,364,081

Incurred but not reported

line of business 2018 2019
Aviation - -
Agro 1,729,762 3,349,091
Eng 4,912,564 8,393,501
Fire 23,574,065 25,936,877
Marine 881,831 19,770,351
Laghu - -
Miscellaneous 382,247 3,780,386
Motor 7,871,398 40,272,367
Total 39,351,867 101,502,573

Outstanding Claim as per LAT

line of business 2018 2019
Aviation - -
Agro 7,404,739 7,047,711
Eng 84,860,421 133,346,232
Fire 92,842,256 238,366,005
Marine 27,155,814 17,774,983
Laghu - -
Miscellaneous 21,960,992 22,093,318
Motor 167,532,299 323,668,668
Total 401,756,521 742,296,917
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AR SR A DUl forfdies

AT
TG ¢
w3y | faazor IJq aof T ast
®) | dEiwTd et
q  FWIHN T AP STHAT I AR - -
R Ariores ST Hedr A 19,400,000 %§,000,000
3 fawr Soar weeh e 3,400,000 3,000,000
¥ ANIE AT AT - ;
Y fa<irg deare HEar e 3,000,000 4,400,000
% dfsetep FFIATH IR STAR (TGN 45.9 FHITH) 995, ¥3%,3%0 99 ¥53 ¥YR
© S qur faxirar gearer s 9ar/ fea=r 999,033,000 519,033,000
SR NIEELRCEIcR - -
%) ATHCHE THT BT - -
@) qUre g &, o 9%9,59%,500 49R,299, %00
M) BEAAA HS }IIEIR0 39,935,330
o) FHq HMYA T TTHLHE ¥,940,000 ¥,940,000
) 4 arele Sfee=ae (@ afaia) 300,000
SFT 840,359,090 3T3,T0%, 003
) | rcusTelir qoET
§  IWRPRN T AIHRH TS YT HRIRET - ¥ 440,000
R atfrsy et Hedr e 9,¥¥q,500,000 4,09%,300,000
3 oo el HEdl Hed 344,040,000 399,540,000
¥ AN @A T = -
Y foxirr "earer qedr [em 34,920,000 419,000,000
& o qur faxira e sEnfaer S/ fere - 90,000,000
@ arfored Fepept =TS AT g o fAaT 9%¥,%%%,950 Q03,8355 %]
& faer St =aTet 9T gy o= fAd 39,335,9%0 35,444, Y
R T |l AT U g o (e ¥,RIR3,3% ],R09,434
90 =T TS I & AT (&R0 A3 ) - -
%) TF.2.T. 9raY dUs - -
q) UA.[9.0H. ®Hd wUg = -
SR 9,038, 0ZE, §BY 9,808,TYY,899
QA SET ?,8C8,84%,904 9,083,6%9,983
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o | afraf faera S fafee R,%00 993,¥00 R,%00 RY,¥35
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R0 | AU ARE TR . ¥09,540 40,000 ¥09,540 ¥%0,%00
RN EEEEREHECURIEN 5,95 Y %3R ¥,\%%,000 G,95Y %3% 3%%0,¥0
R | ufvrar faer S fafaee 3,550,314 ]Y 9300 3,550,394 q,9%%,93%¥
3 | Farer o g fafres q,¥33,5¥Y ¥¥9,900 9,%¥33,5%¥Y% q,0%% 599
¥ | wAEE AEE b quTe far. 984,930 %,%00 9&4,9%0 9% 4]
Y | ey wreaT fa 3,000,000 R,000,000 3,000,000 3,330,000
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Y | FETARATS fae atehr - i
9& | STRTAT fad dfer arsreT (fefveve) 9,434,0%% 3,395,040
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IFFAT 4

farchar fraruresitnr grafeua we war Hifoee
(@) uf=m

o0 o

TRHTIT T FFIAT fafaeg (Sagarmatha Insurance Company Limited) (I 9f; “&#awT” sfqUepT) FarerdT €
fafaa atfaca swuar fsftad ST ®va=T 81 | a9# WA AT TR, FISHATISIHT TEH1 @ | AT HFIAT T97el
fadroe fafara aer fafqdeHar qfaed WOl 91 79 FFere ST FARfqare SAT U, 0¥ E T 10 & ITTHT
3 qar AT IEEE, 0% # IH o F IAAAH () THINSH HuiEd S a9y gearad a9 4ia 3043 9
ATITE 4R TTAaNE FET I T &l |

AT a9 08 T HTA0 § Td G 0% AT ATUTE 39 TAGETH! T [ fqavures a9 FFE GATas
afafaer Tg@a fHfa 099, 03/3% Tq wifva T &7 |

q. fafaar faavur aarieT smaREE (Basis of Preparation)
Tg FHFAIE! [ faeavues Ufdqerias qed dagm (Historical Cost Convention) ¥ &@@dde! fAz=azar (Going
Concern) %1 ATIRHT TS FTGHT QT rI=dT fequiie® d=9r Iooid TRTFHAT aTeeh ATl (Accrual) SATHAT
A@TET T ATHIATAT AT fggT=de® (Generally Accepted Accounting Principles) &THT TH, 20%%, FTHT
ATl 0¥, FFIAI UA, R0%3 TAT G161 ATATAH! fa<ird faawer aaedl IR Afaaar Jrer g
TEHT JEAT HAATS AT A1 JaR TRTERT 3 |

3. TR gwufa wmmse #if (Fixed Assets Policy)
fey gefes UfaeTide Hed AaRUTE ATGRAT ARG HAHT ZTEHE T T@IZUHT T | ¥ I b AT
TRTHT @< TAT TAAT @oells AT HeaHT TSR0 TS |

3. EWEl wifa (Depreciation Policy)
=T AT AT AU (e FHlaesd! 818 el ATIHY U, 045 FRT (Mard a7 q97 aiver ATar Heal 4
JUTeAT (Diminishing Balance Method) &1 HATIRATETT HET TRUH &, 7 TIA AGHT A8 FT |

8. Wfiga wive wrufoee wrawit J@mEa fife (Non-capitalized Assets)
FEIA i THZ & 4,000 A FeF U7 AHINE® UH(F &7 @g 9ud auwr @+ ael fAfq fagusr g |

Y. 3T AGwT Hifd (Income Tax Policy)

AT Y

TG FHAIA ATHRT U, 045 JIT TALHATT ATTHT TAHT TURT TR AfTTqT g ATART Haeqm TWhl & |
quy fafaer faa=oraT Jeorg TIRUHT &7, T @1 G JIAT AT AT BIATATATS LT TR H T=aT
FRF g dHG |

WO BT

fairr faa=or @R Tt qaT TR THA TAT FIH AR A1 Tk T8 21 &1 A1 d=¢ (Temporary
Difference) @I HRU WA HSTAT g H2 AAA AT FH(b] T el JeqA T HIh] A@Ig TUH!
T | TR T oI AUHAT T SRTATH] ThH T H SHRISTHT @S, |

. T Q@ At (Investment Policy)

(@) TSR TATUA/ FUTIAAT TNt q@IE Afer
e afafaer faia faavor avermdt fMEfrerr s i IRar a=raas q97 HOITHT TRUET d=Harg disd
A IR AT He A Al G HIEl HeAHT o@Tgd T4 A [qeual J |
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S TITHTAT
o W i @ o

0.

Q9.

wQ.

Q.

8.

(@) Y/ facla wemer qgdt T @ JEmEs it
Frar afafaer o faawor aramdr fairer s S qar faxiar dearer qedr fAaamr A s
TqraT THAAT T@ETH B |

(n ufses fafiee FFudier ITRAT T qETE difd
qfectdr fafHee HFIATE AR TS TR AAAT AMGUH G | A Hedl WAl TR Hed FH ATAT Flh
FH HAATs AaLT @9 (Provision for Investment Loss) @@TsH TRTH 3 |

(&) ufeqs fafies Frodiar SRT IRET HUTUAGEAT T q@IZA st

qfeder fAfHeE FFII ST T HOTTTAT bl AHAATS ATFd AAAT @3 TRTH 3 |

WeEl Tedg AR difd (Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Policy)

fazeft HaraT wEhT FFafa ¥ afacadr Afead HISaTae! @S TUTAl HETHT TUITHl o GRE 3¢ ATIR TRH
T | fagelt HETHT WUH FRERAE e fafaer fafaaa warg arar /e qarsd TRew g o fag @ ad o
FUHT AITHT FTAH TEh] (G 7T TP ATIRHAT b T ST THHATS [STHIHT qTRT a7 AT EdmadT s@rs+
AT s Tusr g |

fATYIeE ST ar@Tsa st (Premium Income Policy)
AATSTek ATRETHT ATAT UA ¥ A atafder 3 aaiiTs 98 qiaesl AT q@rgy TRUEH g | dHaE g
qUAT 7§ TRUET a9 I<h SIH] Aebells Alfe AMIEF a9 F@TgT T ATHT ek ATFRATETE Taed TRTH G |

TAATHT FEHR T ATIT I g ATHISTeh ATRETHT GIATET (Accrual) HTaRHAT d@rse TRTH B |

U TAT &Y SR q@Tsd difa (Reinsurance Commission Income Policy)

HATHT FHTAATE Accrual Basis AT ATRTHT @@TsH T4 (Hid [@gU® B | HATHT HA (Profit Commission)
greeTHT draT Ftafaer faxdm faawe awewdr e aaiiw arafad g dmeare fafegg a@de g 90 q9fg
AGTE T {AfT w3 |

AN AETSA T SIS i (Other Income and Appropriation Policy)

FEIATS AT I T AT AT AT ATRETAIATS, ATHTET ATeeh, GIEHTET (Accrual) ATITRAT F@Tg= T T

TfAfae fadr fqare FwedT MaRTe SHINA & ATR=TAErs AT A fde agr Ja a9 Earas 9r
FTAR ATSHIE TRTH F |

HWT WETEa #ifd (Loans& Advances Policy)
FHIATA IJTART TXH FATATS FoTlehl ATAT THHAT AT T Al TEH B | TF AT, 004 /0% HT HFITT
fadTe a1 SaTST O B qfT Bl @R G |

AT G AIShIE aife (Management Expenses Appropriation Policy)

FTAT FTATTRT (ETTRT ATITTHT AT @bl Q0 AT TeH ATRT AT [E@ATaHT G T@Tg AThT THHAATE
FEEted AT SAAATIR TAET AHTTHAT ATHAT FHHAITT FeT T & ATSH IHAATS Fd ATH HaIIH AT AA
F ATHT SATATIR] Akl ATARHT AHT AR AT AT @ ASHIS T Al AaerFa TRTH B |

AT qrel WTRTHT @9 qETEa difd (Claim Expenses Policy)
FFIATA ATHT AT AHTABIES AGTFAE] @ STHITTH AT T 97 ATq(qe aTREH T Ad9qd IR
TAT AT @ FHT Te@rsgd T9 A (e 3 |

AT g AU qTRcE Rt AETSA At

(@) HTAT AUHI T ATTHERAT TATTH! AAT AT AT JMTcA AT A@Tg ATEITIAR] AATAD] ATITHT
QTS T AT TEH G |

(@) THTAT G aTehl qTET THABI AT ATHT (HAATEAT, 0%, H A QUE), FHITH 9% FqTa IHH ez
T er@rzd T AT frguar @
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W.
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9.

.

.

gq dThT afswie fifr (Net Profit Appropriation Policy)

ATAT (ATl 0%, 1 TRT () T9T STAT FAfdet faxirg fawer avaedr Mafiiere sraedr aHifaTH =
ISl aRTIR AHUEEH GT ATRTHT L0 GfANTHT g7 AT (W STHTHITHT ATH A TWhl §, AT Sh THAATS
TEH G |

FHHART IugH, fagr T 3w Ghaum amud aer #ifd (Employees Retirement Benefits Policy)
FFITTRT FHAT [ATHEA AR FHART IUEH, =, (a7 T97 =7 Fagrenad &= T 9t fagusr
|

(&) IugT
TFH ARTE T HE A S SR HITHT T T A1l FAguH 3 |

(@) Fead™

FFATTRT FHAT fafTaH AR FFA Gg AR ARTETTR] HFLAT TN B | T AT HHARNDT AT
TATHN Q0 FTTMAA ALAT T AFRITI GAHT G QT Tl IRATEI IHH FHAT TR Teaqad FHATT
@rardT ST T i fewerr @)

(1) T U et
FEATTRT FHAT [ATTH AR AT FHAREwH drad u2 (a8 araae! THHH! FaedT T4 Aiid s g |

VIhUG STHTHT et Hifd (Provision for Doubtful Debts Policy)
9THTEIT ATATHIR! ATNT SHATATIAA (RO T ATHT ATAR Gl T Al el G |

U G qE@TEd Aid (Write Off Policy)
TFT T JAT HOTAEE GREHT HThTA TUH GTHTAATS ITh a=q q9T HITAeEEH IThiAl datd TTaR
AT ETHT @ STATGT TN AT ATAGT THI @ GIET qAT F @ ofed A (A0 g |

o= Hifeew
AIAT, ATRT AT feqre, o 237 fedma avmaaa fad fqaroars v ¥ faeeor 9 F9rg W 9= o
Afaes:

() TOTHIETE TGt qETga At
FTATETE I & SATFRTAT YIGSTEr (Accrual) T @THIT AT 318 JIRer! STERHT J@rsd T Aifd 2H B |

(@) SEAT ST FIST q@Tga ifer
FFIAC STHT (HIHEAT 0¥, TAT AAT UA 0%, FHISTH ATHTG SAM@H SWST aT9d @& SMAT edbebl L0 FaeTd
THHA FART T (T TEH B T AARIT TREH THHATS Agedd] AT THAT AR TATSH (AT el B | Afsd

STHThT ShAT FAXIT T THAATS AT a9 Tiegepl AT STIHT ATRETAT STATS (A TEh G |

(37) URETAT Yleb ae qETEa ata
TAEAT ek @oaTs GIEHTET (Accrual) STETRHET @@rgd T A WEHhl B |

(1) Tt apfie=uT it
FTAT T AT 72T ATehbl ATHIATS ATBTATT AITHIR] TTAT TETIT AT (ATHT G |
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AR ScAR A ddudil forfdies

IFYAT &
fociar faarureran Trafrua war wwwit feoaufies
9. FRITfaa qificaee

d) FFIATH BTAGFH =[Thl a1 AhTAT g afiebl XAl THUR |

oT) ETATFH FES BAgeagfd Ffaagdr (Underwriting Commitments) T2l & |

g) HETHT TF ATA. AT HA I FHE AT AT ATk G SUX B AT TR G |
%) HEIAS ATHRAT TRATE [TZUHT AT THUHT |

3) O qURICA: TH HFAIC T ATHT AT AR IR For el el diiAdesse ardl JrATd qar TARTeaed SAardaaHr
HET AT TRE T ITh TET A19d 8 F qMIcT 3. ¥4 FSATs FPATad cd A=l S@rsual 3 |

9. WTRT I dieT qTel amud gTiicd HeATS TGT SaeFas IRehT HATREE
ATRTAT T STl Il AT aTacashl AATSA (o audl Aq9d T FHITET TRUHN TIHL ATAR TRTEH g | FHT
AT, R0%Q ®1 (| qU(3) HT aedT Aq2T Fiead TRUH! el ATAAT TAEHT BFATRT EFT 99U % B
AT THY IET a19d HGLT TTHT 3 |

3. s geufawT sgwt Wifkdar qur faagess
FHIHTA @IYT b TRATEEAT ETATEH F [FaTdes T |

8. i, @ quT R wwafaT abn kgt wfEar
FEATS T, T qAT R Aeieet AT & giqagar T G |

Y. T SRR JEEeT Gy s SReETeT ae:

o) @fve Tusr grafaar @i T THTE S |

o) HEAHTRT EGeare (T TR Rl G & Taebebl S |
§. TW T ARYST Tt qm fasRt/ firat fager s faamor

(@) T ast Wt Afgar AT TR faeRoT

F. | e & AT ARYHT IHH
q | SOt FERET AMET AT _

R | anforsr Sreperr wedt fad 4Y,30,00,000/-

3 | fasbrar Sepept weel faad q4,19,00,000 /-

¥ | fot seereRT Wedl e 9,5%,30,000//-

Y | atfrssr ST Hora 3,00,00,000/-

& | ZHETEN R S ,50,%0,%35 /-

© | PRI B 40,00,000//-
SFAT TY,Q,90,83C /-
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T.

B.

&S TITTHTAT
o B s 6. foT,

(@) T at et RgET T Rewtar faror

T, | ST & T ARYDT IHH
Q| TS ARHTHT LT TS ¥¥ 40,000/ -
3| aforsar ST At faar 95,94,00,000/ -
3| faeprar Sepept Aot far 3,23,00,000/-
¥ | fat swoirent Hed e -
Y | afores ST oTTE 4,00,00,000 /-
& | ofser Fvaerer AaR SR A= -
©| FFIA B -

SFEAT W, 93,490,000/~

% Hisg feume grawmT grafeaa o/ fadiar aeamer awew faer e fraw st @R
TS ok, foepre oieb T faiiar HeATE®AT TEhT S HISaTd HIIIh! [EaATea (el TREhd! ¥ Trliwed GedEEae
faarr WisaTa AHIT TF Y HE FE GEAEEH GHIT U g HHAT G |

fie T wdtAES fo f dtat e vt wrafeud dWe ¥ wrdiresr e Sfeaer e frem wwawdt 2@
T FFIA ATHE AT TAAAREET Ul AT [A(a] O fearerd] FHIT U Teaad! T del M SHEamd
FHAT 97 YT g FHHAT TWH G |

FHEHA IRHT T ataa ST gw, foemmac qur fwr atnfaae @ifee sHifew 3 a=eer

ATHe TR AAHE AN T FHRB! THAT I HRITEHT T AEHHAT STHT AIATTRT AT (AITHT ATAR
AT AIRRATS ST (AT HOTT ITA THUH] FEATHT ITh &TTHT FHH Tehl AT ThHATS AT Aebebl Tl
feqramr @t 7+ @fes quwras F@E FEIiTH qA9T THFH A1frSA FFEEFT AT AT ARCE T

90. fABHHT FATHD a7 FATAGIT JrATotld AR T YEARRT HTHT BRETR

T HFIAT GoTelh 9T GATARET FHI7E Ak a] T T HFIileh] TEATTHEEeTE ST TTHT & |

9q. fiAHA T FFIfaeT FETuTAT faget skuteT et s e sitfaer

FEIHTA BTl ATHRAT TEATTRT GRETAT el T (T THT ST |

Q. dHEHT HT TCHT THTUTUS TITT IRGT T4, TUT TAEAT AT YATOTUR UIA g1 St 31T.a. ¥ W qeawdt foraRumat oy siftreat

1A, TEDHT HY AT AT qUA Gl UGBTI X AF HT.AAT HThTET HUBT IHH

(&) FFIHT SIH F2 fqazor frafaa soar afadr 78 ArgeEr g | FEiHE 9Td. 2055/ 059, R0%8/0%5 T R0%5 /058,
B ATARY TAT FIEAT FEATAE TAFIRI T T, 5%, 6%, 9% 99 T A HTAH bl AT JUR F=ad Aqwheblel
TETH (BT TARTAATHART AT ATACF ASTeA [A9RTHT [FaE T TRHS] | 99 & qMacaars Aiad e

5 T

(@) AA. 0% /0O FI AT FATAT FATATAE ATTART (MR AT TR 99 A, F2 EY,5N G FaedT TRUEH
P |

93. firat IR®T fAREEHT TRATIT T HROT

TF AT AT FEA T 5,232,304 [q0T 9ok A FRveEd el fRAr War B
(%) fafRder SARIGHT SHTs THH TeTSUH |

(@) FTERT SATHTeE ST g TTH |

(T) iqad" 7@ g TTH |

(%) ATATCrEHT qET MRS FREH FESUHT
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El.,' el %, o,

8.

W.

&.

0.

.

.

UG g AT Gew! fqaur
FFIAT AT FXFRFIE AN T9d9T @REHT TR TR T ATARTe@d T el qEH |

IRt Geiaed SR WeRtT Wt (Paid in advance) WThTHT UTGT &0 @fat (Call in arrears) ¥ Sthd JTYTT A% Qo
forswmye MorRuesT R faasor

- =hT gSIAET ARH ATl 9T (Paid in advance) 2178% AWTH |

- YThTAI 9T &9 A1l (Call in arrears) S19RE® THUE |

- SR TRUS q¥ I R ARUH aREes THUH |

fosr gice wFufawAT 9Iq asigF ¥ a9 a8t @ (Amortization) WfEg®T e faavor
ferst eree @wfaaT a9 99 @< (Amortization) Sf@TEl THH G |

TEHTEAT HUHT AT ATERDT HRERG {qa=oT
ATFATT ATETH BRI AT |

SrftreaT aiEwdor rafeud ST AT EEEEadT GETgy faaRur
ATeTodT UEEHT FEId @9 €. 3 ¥ 533 AT AT, 3094 /063 F AT QT HTATAIATE I AT F2 e
AT AR FT BGAIS TTHN ThH & U2, 5N THT AT TEH 3 |

T B (Deferred Tax)
A %Y GEIT T AFCAB] TUAT ATAE 39, R0 B (qaR (HFTEAR TEhl &

ferazur Tq TE A T
T FY FRata)(qriae) :

fearz areafa QeR¥35%) |  (3¥%0,0%5)
forar e sgaRen GR35 ¥Y LY,33,3%
AT TFTAT e ¥394,3¥3 ¥Y,9%,99¥
q AT ST EER AR RR,¥Y4,5R0
CRIBIEIRIR DR - -
I F FEata/ (FTRe) 9,89,49,0BT [  9,3y,By, LY

0. TrAfoU UeTEw Wl SRR (Related Parties Transactions)

FTEITUAAT ZHT TG AThee
AT, FATAF TAT TG BB ATTRAATS AEATITH THE AThe! TIAT [ASTH B | bl fqawer f=rar
TH B

. AT AHEFTT AR qeeT

g, AT A TresT TS

T ot fagrd @ ITrverd FATAR

A Al AR, [uEed D

3 1 I AR Sl BEIEE

T T TR AT A F=TAD

3. AT (e 34 AR @ dATA®

ST, T ST & TG FIFNT ATTRT
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CER
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Q9.

T

HFRT qAT Jrafotlq ATHET da HUHT PRIERET i a9 ast fort weige Wermt aiResT §:

fa . | feamor qAE Wl Torded | dET auT o | umufeT e AT
oo ghawr gt ghafa war ELG) THH
& | GaTdFES - %,93,000 ¥ 93,000 §,08,000 g, 89,000
g | @ FEEe e 49,5333 - - -] 99,T3,33¢C
STHAT 49,23,33C %,92,000 8,493,000 g,009,000 ©C,99,33C

AUTH YAGTAT HFUATHT EATAH JALAT TOITaAT

AT AATAT HFIAh] AT SATHT FUHT A STHT & 9%,95,98,500

wEtfauta wer
FTAT FAfAE 309 FHIS & Td ST TWH RIT 7. 9% FTER [aard [q@zorAr arnT [ @ard $w=awid aiehige
AT ITAT THHH 0 FATAA & THH &, q,%¥,0,08% HeTaqrd SISl ar9d Gearsue S |

SIST T IS

AT FEHTEer R0%% 1 I QUET) FHINTA (ASitad d91 FFIre! =[Thl Isi oRTay q90 TFF JATHRTH L0 gfaerd
THH SIS HIOHT AT T ATET AT FFIAH AT, 004 /0% FH HATHIH! L0 FANTA & THH TASTHTAT %,
9% R, ¥ ¥, 3%0 TIST HITHT (ATHT T JAT SHT ST FTRTHT 3 |

HHART a9
TXAd AYHT A9 ATTqd gidaaTA T (NFRS) AR A0S @& AATHIH! 10 Ffaeraed g9 TS+ T & 3,3% 49,380
FHATY A ATIT LT TRUH 3 |

STABY AT

ATIHT U, 045 qIT & A AT ad! (FIH7 ATAR FAH TR F AT AT ATIRAT AAHT TOAT T T
T ATAFT ATTT T, 43,%3,0%,00% (TAAY & 4, 40,¥4,0%3) AT RTHT T | T TAT TAT TAT FETAT FATATAE
FY (IR s@d ITh AGLdT Hieh U9 ATCHAT el a9 ATa9dF HTETAT T 3 |

aure facfrr ufragaA™ (NFRS)

I FES Uhlgrdre ALAERT A9 fa<ira gfqaa @ (NFRS) FFI0 dTHT FFIAeedrs 1. 2063,/ 0¥ g Afqard
FIHT AT TRITHHT JEAT AT, 3094 /9% HT 91 A1t gfeqaasae (NFRS) smamdia g fa<ira faawor qamr fegesr
EX

Frar afafaer fafa 00 /0% /99 #1 e FwHITH T e 1.d. 00y /%% Ifg ST Ftafaer SrT e fHiras
ATHT @A T ApRT A fqaRor gredT fqeeT awited Nepal Standards on Auditing 800 Special considerations

- Audits of Financial Statements prepared in Accordance with Special purpose frameworks F=I I g+ @I
gfdqaed afeq dmHT AMHIGHT FrEiaer @it ar difqa fgeaRe qar T g |

3

(%) RORHTA HTIE HATTHT G Hel MIHTH =ehe® Gherrd qeivad dhe®dl TSUHl THH 0% Jqre a0
AIEATHT STHAT STUHT He AE0 O T Gfegehl FATqeweaT SFT 89 TUHT 7oA & 9,99,4% 355 @5 a7 el d=aiq
T T FHTATST TRTH T |

(@) FTHT FIATTPT e aHIfTs T qa1 arell ¥ qg AT 917 A fewa g auw AReH g |

YHADT UA: WITHRUT qAT UA: ATHEIHRIT
T AR TFHEEATE ATAVTRAT AR I TR0 TIT T ATHETRRT TRUHT S ¥ T Ahew (Ahaad SIITH]

TEIEUH G |
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L. HIHS-9E & WHTE:
fareaeardy HTETHTE®T FTAT Rfduar #Ifqg-9% FRAT AEIT FHANF! SAfgHare g7 T fauw qffeafaars fadm
STHT T ATETHI IATHTRT AT J9T @AYot qi fafd 09 =3 qq T g=araw<l (LOCKDOWN) e

T FAfated @ | a9 gRieafaer gy e 9o fFaue aarde FREnEEE q69 WH g |

=T AIF T 065 /008 HT AfedH THTGHHT AT & TUH! T THHT fquq qifeafasr swo aHian fas
Y 00 /%% F FREAREIE [G6d AT AT AT A ATMF FTTGAA HFIATD] GABTFAT Al FFIET FT TI@ITEH]
qUAT 9 ARTHT AT THRT FRIEGRAT AT TATE G GEATEAT 5T FLATS TR Alh |

HITE-9¢, BRIAT AT FHHE! (9T HETHRIA &l (999 dAdaed 5 exrardl qUepl da€rar J97e i Jaere
PRl FRE T TATART Sty qoT faeiiar e, 47 &, JANT FAhRel, T9aA A Tr0 ardd FREARES
TEAT HAALATHT F=AT & T GPTaA] A g AaLdThl ATbAT TRUH a1 AT HeAbeb ANGF AT FHSAR g
FEATIATATS SATAAT IET AT GRPIR ATHITAE T FAH T W@ FFA] FAAAHAS FREwdls qqeeT T
T TFAT GATAT T ATATERT FoIAT T Gl &7 AT FATATH AT HAATAEEF] HAGAAS F= TS
TATT T T W= TTeT TTRTH o |

TEd, FFAIE] AFATIE TSN IETATE FH AT TIHHI AT FALITIAA =T TFRFT ATATAE ATTATEEATS
HIAHIA TG T AMIFAGEH AT AT TATSH B T [q9ard el G |
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Management Team

(Seated from the left)

Shailesh Prasad Acharya
AGM

Chunky Chhetry
CEO

Shrawan Kumar Rawal
DCEO

Manjushree Katwal (Thapa)
Re-Insurance - Manager

(Standing from the left)

Prakash Chandra Neupane
HR - Sr. Officer

Dibash Timalsina
Underwriting - Asst. Manager

Subhash Dixit

Claim - Sr. Manager

Bishwonath Adhikari

Admin/Company Secretary - Dy. Manager

Ganesh Dhakal

Operation/Finance - Sr. Manager

Jas Karan Chaudhary
IT - Dy. Manager




Branch Heads

Aishwarya Panday
Birtamode
023-543437

Akur Rimal
Chababhil
01-4498110

Anil Raj Bajracharya
Teku
01-4100209

Bed Prakash Adhikari
Tulsipur, Dang
082-523092

Bhanu Pratap Singh
Lahan
033-562188

Bharat Kumar Adhikari
Bhaktapur
01-6610701

Binod Chalaune
Salyan
088-400094

Bishal Pradhan
Dulegauda
065-414457

Bishnu Acharya
Jitpur
076-550125

Bishnu Shrestha
Dhading
010-520043

Bishwash Devkota
Gongabu
01-4390616

Changu Narayan Bista
Jajarkot
089-430336

Deepak Prasad Bhandari
Galyang
063-460518




Branch Heads

Dev Raj Dangal
Damak
023-585435

Devendra Prasad Acharya
Kathmandu Plaza
01-4168535

Dhan Bahadur Katuwal
Gaighat
035-421212

Dilli Raj Bhusal
Chandrauta
076-540245

Diwakar Sharma
Bancassurance
01-4168535

Dolraj Shrestha
Rampur, Palpa
075-400484

Ganesh Gurung
Chanauli Sub Branch
056-591830

Gangadhar Poudel
Kohalpur
081-542056

Gopal Gyawali
Butwal
071-545941

Gopal Prasad Neupane
Parasi, Nawalparasi
078-520150

Govinda Prasad Upadhyaya
Nepalgunj
081-528312

Hari Sigdel
Chandranighapur
055-540647

Hemant Lamichhane
Dhangadi
091-523322

Hemanta Bhattarai
Illam
027-521497




Branch Heads

Hemanta Poudel
Manthali Branch Office
048-540702

Hom Bahadur Chettri
Tandi
056-561810

Kabi Raj Poudel
Pokhara
061-535057

Kamal Prasad Poudel
Itahari
025-586794

Karuna Kaphle
Tansen
075-521394

Keshab Rijal
Kupondole
01-5180215

Kishan B.K.
Tikapur
091-561432

Krishna Sanyasi
Rukum
088-530377

Kuber Shahi
Pyuthan
9868162562

Laxman Jamkatel
Gajuri
010-402188

Lok Bahadur Katuwal
Sarlahi
046-530517

Lokendra Neupane
Jumla
087-520649

Machhindra Bogati
Narayangadh
056-532430

Mohan Gautam
Bhairahawa

L 071-523526

Mukesh Das
Janakpur
041-520788




Branch Heads

Mukesh Kanu
Bardaghat
078-580486

Prakash Thapa
Damauli
065-561862

Narayan Adhikari Rajan Rawat
Birauta Besisahar, Lamgunj
061-467846

066-521267

Narayan Gautam
Biratnagar
021-528136

Rajan Sharma
Arghakhachi
077-420865

T
Narayan Prasad Khanal & Ram Prasad Thapaliya
Waling Syangja " Banepa
063-440692 A 011-664293
Narendra Bahadur Malla Ramesh Adhikari
Dadeldhura Gulmi Tamghas
096-410317 079-520865

Prakash Bhatta
Attariya
091-551007

Ramesh Neupane
Patan
01-5544106

Ramesh Prasad Paudel
Manigram
071-561820

Prakash Raj Wonta
&8 New Road
& 01-5713180




Branch Heads

Rishi Gautam
- Arunkhola
- 078-555025

Roshani Kumari Mahara
Mahendranagar
099-524392

Ruk Maya Tamang
Simara
053-521567

| Rupendra Thapa
9 Baneshwor
014787015

Sagar Paudel
Baglung
068-521534

Sandeep Singh Thakuri
Birgunj
051-523795

Sapana Shrestha
s Hetauda
¥ 057-526810

o8
" 8)

Mugu
9848322453

Shankar Raj Tiwari
Lekhnath
061-561857

Sharad Adhikari
Dang Ghorahi
082-560195

Sudip Shrestha
Dumre
065-580386

Sugam Basnhet
Charikot
049-421598

Sunita Rijal Prasain
Dharan
025-532277

Susan Shrestha
Nuwakot
010-561953

Uttam Lamichhane
Kawasoti
078-541136

Surkhet
083-524491
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